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Attention: MS. JANET A. ENCARNACION
Head, Disclosure Group

Gentlemen:

In compliance with the rules and regulations ofthe Philippine Slock Exchange (PSE) with respect

to onJine and timely disclosures, attached please find the Company's SEC Form 17Q Report for
quarter ending September 30, 2012.
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1.

?

4.

Forthe quarterly period ended: SeDtember 30. 2012

Commission identification number: 99509

BIR Tax ldentification: 00tl{0tl-281400

1. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization:

Metro Manila. PhilioDines

Industry Classification Code:

Address of registrant's principal office/Postal Code:

o.

SECURIT]ES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

SEC FORM 17-Q

OUARTERLY REPORT PURSUAN T TO SECTION I7 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRG RULE 17(2Xb) THEREUNDER

Exacl name of registrairt as specified in its charter

GENTURY PROPERTIES GROUP lNC. lfomlerlv East Asia Power Resources corporation)

6.

9.

Registrant's telephone number, including area code:

(632) 7935500

Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report:

Fishport Gomolex. Navotas Metro Manila

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the code, or seclions 4 and 8 of the RsA:

Title of Each Class

-Number 

of shares of common stock
Outstanding and

Amodnt of Debt Out$qlqlng 

-Common Shares 8,895,087,776 common thares
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11. Are any or all of the securities listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange?

Yes [/l No t I

lf yes, state the name of such stock Exchange and the class/es of securities lis{ed therein:

Philiopine Stock Exchanoe. lnc.: Common shares

Indicate by check mark whether the regi$rant:

(a) has filed a reports required to be filed by Section l7 of the Code and SRC Rule 17 thereunder

or section 11 of the RsA and RSA Rule 1 1(a)-1 thereunder, and sections 26 and 141 of lh€

corporation code of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such

shorter period the registranl was required to file such reports)

Yes [/l No [ ]

(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days'

Yes [/l No t I

12.
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CONSOLIOATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in million pesos)

Unaudited Audited

cunent Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5) P 1'199'8 P 366 6

Receivables - net (Note 6) 6'558.3 1'603 6

Reaf estate lnventory (Note 7) 2,291-A 1'552'9

Land held for future development (Note 8) 1,193.5 1'306 2

Due from related parties 375'6 155 8

Advances to suppliers and contractors (Note 9) 1,'105.3 2'300 1

preoavments and other cunent assets Note 10) 2.009.9 
- 9!3.?

Totil Current Assets t5.032.8 8'127 4

Non+urent Assets
Non-current real estate receivables
Availablefor-sale fi nancial assets
Investment properties (Note 11)

Property and equipment - nel
Deferred tax assets
Intangible assets

247.7
10.0

1,580.8
205.7
179.7

2.6

371.0
10.0

1,119.2
192.3
'191 .8

-rotgrlon-cunent nssets z.zc.z ,1 99?'9

-- 

P n'28Js P 1oonA

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounls and other payables (Note 13)

Cuslomers' advances and deposits (Note 14)

Short-term debt (Note 15)

P 2,7os.i P
2,491.7

126.9

Current portion of:- 
Long+brm oeut (Note 15) 748'9 369 3

Liability from puichased lanct 22'5 19 6

Due to related Parties 111'2 115'1

,n"on." ,"* o"""0," 76.,1 . 149.9
-TlGt dilnfuaoitities e'3tg'l a'aoa'a

496.7
65.6
18.2

968.7
2,730.6

16.5

Non+urcnt Liabilities
Long-term debt - net of cunent poriion (Note 15)

Liability from purchased land - net of current portion

Pension liabilities

r,926.4
57.4
20.8

Equlty
Equity attributable to owners of the parent company:

capital stock (Note 16)
Additional paid-in capital (Note 16)
Retained eamings (Note 16)

1,716.9
1,443.2
1,651.5

4,010.2
J-Z

321 .0
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(in million pesos, except earnings per share)

Unaudited Unaudited
Jul - Sep Jan - Sep

Unaudited Unaudited
Jul - Sep Jan - Sep

REVENUE
Real eslate sales
Property management fee and other services

P 2,009.5
,[6.9

6,544.0
157.0

P 1,008.5
55.3

P 2,883.4
151 .0

P

COST AND EXPENSES
Cost of real eslate sales
Cost of servic€s
General, administrative and selling expenses

1,190.5
40.8

45/1.0

3,872.2
115.7

1,325.9

813.4
39.8

235.9

1 ,848.9
106.7
cov.c

INCOME BEFORE TAX 587.5 1,872.5 327.5 982.3

NET INCOME

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

167.1 1,411.6 227.3

Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-saies

Net income(loss) attributable to:
Equity holdlrs oi the Parent Company P 4?3.0 1,416'9 227 '2 721 7

Non-iontrollino interests t .!.9) t 5.31 0'1 - 0'9

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attnbdable to:
Equity hoiders of the Parent Comp.ny P 473-0 1,416'9 227 '2 722'7

Non-controllino interests { 5.9) ( 5.3) ,,9'! = 
0 9

P 461 1 P 1.4115 P 22r 3 P ?235

Weiohted averaoe common shares E.90q 8'752 4 01? - 4 012

ffiPo.o5P0.16Po
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENTS
(in million pesos)

Unaudited
3GS€o-12 30-sep-11

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
982.3

121 .1

Unaudited

Income before tax
Adjustments for:

Interest expense

P 7.872.5 P

159.6
Deoreciation and amortization 4O.2 19.0
Interest income f ?99.71 ( 309.7)

Operating income before worting capital changes 1,712.6 812.7
Decrease/(increase) in:

Receivables
Real estete inventories
Advances from suppliers and contraclors
Prepayments and olher cunent assets
Land held for future development

lncrease (decrease) in:
Accounts and other payables
Customers' advances and deposits
Pension liabilities 2.6 ( 3.0)

Cash from (used in) operations
lnterest received

4,686.7)
738.1)
894.8

r,r67.0)
112.7

1,740.0
( 235.s)

( 2,305.01
63.4

6s1 .7)
771.2
679.2)
58s.9)

74.2

421 .8
307 .4

467 .5
15.2

Interest paid ( 74.5) ( 48.5)
lncomc lax Daid ( 149.0) ( 4 .31

Net cash from (used in) operatino activities | 2.'165.1) 390.9

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACT]VITIES
Decrease (increase) in non-cunent assets
Additions:

Investment properties
Property and equipment

7.31

46{.6)
53.61

1 19.6)

19.0)
133.0)

98.2)

Decrease (increase) in due from related parties ( 193.81 573.6
Nel cash Drovided bv (used in) inveslinq activities ( 716.3) 302.0

CASH FLOVI'S FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net oroceeds from issuance of shares of stock
Payment of cash dividends
Availments (repayments) of:

Short-term and long-term debt

2,186.6
86.4)

1,919.7 (
I iabilitv from Durchased land ( 5.3) 15 6

NFJ .rsh nmvided bv /used in) financino ac'tivities /t.014.6 ( 82.6)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EOUIVALENTS 833.2 610.3

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGTNNING OF PERIOD 366.6 282.7

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF PERIOD P T.199.8 P 893.0
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I, CORPORATE INFORMATION

Century Properties Group, Incorporated, formerly East Asia Power Resources Corporation CEAPRo),
('CPG|" orthe "Company", "Century) was originaliy incorporated on March 23, 1975 as Northwest Holdings
and Resources Corporation. In September 26, 201 1, the Board of Directors of GPGI approved the change in
the Company's corporate name to its present name, as well as the change in its primary business purpose
from power generation to that of a holding company and real estate business. Between May and November
2011, Century Properties Inc ("CPl) entered into a series of transactions with EAPRC, a corporation
organized under the laws of the Philippines and listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange, whereby, among
other things, cPl acquired 96.99% of EAPRC'S Common Shares and EAPRC acquired all of the subsidiaries
of CPl.

Cenlury is one of the leading real estate companies in the Philippines with over 26 years of exp€rience.
Curently, the Company has four subsidiaries namely Century City Development Corporation, Century Limitless
Corporation, Ceriury Communities Corporation, and Century Properties Management (colle€tively kno$,n as the
"Subsidiaries). Through its Sub6idiaries, Century develops markels and sells residential, office, medical and
retail properties in the Philippines, as well as manages residential and oommercial properties in the
Philippines.

As of December 31, 2011 , the Company completed 20 condominium and commercial buildings (4,'128 units)
with a total GFA of 548,262 sq.m. The roster of noteworthy developments include the awad-winning
Essensa East Forbes (Essensa") in Fort Bonifacio, South of Market CSOMA") in Fort Bonifacio, SOHO
Central in the creenfield District of Mandaluyong City, Pacific Plac€ in Ortigas and a collection of French-
inspired condominiums in Makati city called Le Triomphe, Le Domaine and Le Metropole.

Currently, the Company is developing four master-planned communities that are expec{ed lo have
23 condominium and commercial buildings with approximately 14,748 condominium and commercial units
and 955 single detached homes, with a total expected GFA of 1 ,185,024 sg.m.

The Company's land bank for future development consists of propertieq in Quezon City and Batangas that
cover a site area of 1 .966.865 sq.m.

The Company, through Century Properties Management, Inc. ('CPM|") also engages in a wide range of
property management services, from facilities management and auction services, to lease and secondary
sales. Through CPMI, the Company endeavors lo ensure the properties it manages maintain and improve
their asset value, and are safe and secure. CPMI currently manages 51 projects with tolal GFA of 2,192,338
sq.m., and 80% of the projects CPMI manages were developed by thid-parties. Notable third-party
developed projects under management include the Asian Development Bank in Ortigas. BPI Buendia Center
in Makati City, Philippine National Bank Financial Center in Pasay City, Pacific Star Building in Makati City,
Makati Medical Center in Makati City and three Globe Telecom buildings in Cebu, Mandaluyong and Makati
City, respectively.

Century's aim is to enhance the overall quality of life for Filipinos and foreign nationals by providing
distinctive, high-quality and affordable properties. Cenlury focuses on differentiation to drive demand,
increase our margins and grow market share. In particular, Century identifies what the Company believes are
the best global residential standards and adopts them lo the Filipino market. CPGI believes that it has
eamed a reputation for pioneering new housing concepts in the Philippines. One of Century's significant
contributions is the Fully-Fitted and Fully-Fumished ('FFiFF) concept, which is now an industry slandard in
the Philippines. We also employ a branding strategy that focuses on stretegic arrangements with key global

franchises to help capture and suslain consumers' awareness. To date, CPGI has entered into agreements
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with Gianni Verace S.P.A., Oonald Trump (through the Trump Organization) , Paris Hilton, and Missoni
Homes, among others.
Century has marketed and sold to clients in more than 50 countries and, as a resull, a significant portion of
its residential properties are sold to Filipinos living abroad. Intemational pre-sales accounted for
approximately two-thirds of the total pre-sales, in terms of value, for each of the last three years. CPGI
conduct its sales and marteting through the Company's extensive domesticand intemational network of
2,842 agents and brokers as of December 31, 2011.

on July 1 1, 201 1, the Company disclosed that cPl has @mmenced a negotiated purchase thru a Deed of
Assignment of Shares of Stock dated May 31 , 2011 with EPPECI for the follo,rring acquisitions: (1) 67,096,092
common shares CPublic Sale Shares) of Easl Asia Power Resources Corporation (EAPRC) equivalent to 1.88806
of EAPRC and (2) 284,25O,OO0 cornmon and prefened shares CPrivate Sale Shares) of EPHE (former Parent
Company of EAPRC) resulting to an indireci acquisition of equivalent to 91.695% of the total issued and
outstanding capital stock of EAPRC. The purchase price for the Public and Private Sale Shares amounts to a total
consideration of Phpl27,406,794.31 (the "Private Sale Consideration) allocated as follows:
Php2,569,732.51 for the Public Sale Shares and Php124,837,061 .80 for the Private Sale Shares

Due io the aforementioned transadions and sale of securities, the Company effected a cfiange in ownership from
EPHE to CPI.

On September 26, 2011, the Company entered into a share-siwap transaction with its Parent Company, CPI
to subscribe for an additional 4,01 I ,671,023 CPGI shares of stock. CPI sssigned its shares in its
subsidiaries to CPGI based on the aggregate book vales of CPI'S sharcs in the subsidiaries as determined.
from the audited financial slatements of CPMI, CCC, CCDC and CLC for the year ended July 31 , 201 1

Below is the Company's percentage of o'rrnership in its Subsidiaties as of the filing of this report.

Percentage of Ownership as of
the Filing of the Report
Direct lndirect

cenlury communities corporation (ccc) 100

Century City Development Corporation (CCDC) 100

Century Limitless Corporation (CLC) 100

Century Properties Management Inc. (CPMI) 80

CPGI conducls its operations through four Subsidiaries, Century Communities Corporation CCCC'), Century

Properties Management, lnc. ('CPMI), Century City Development Corporation CCCDC) and Century
Limitless Corporation ('cLC").

Century Communities Corporation

CCC, incorporated in 1994, is focused on horizontal house and lot developments. From the
conceptualization to ihe sellout of a project. CCC provides experienced specialists who develop and execute
the right strategy to successfully market a project. CCC is currently developing Canyon Ranch, a 2s-hectare
house and lot development located in Carmona, Cavite.

Century City Development Corporation

CCDC, incorporated in 2006, ii focused on developing mixed-use communities that contain residences,
office and retail properties. CCDC is currently developing Century City, a 3.4-hectare mixed-use
development along Kalayaan Avenue in Makati City.
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Century Limitless Corporation

CLC, incorporated in 2008, is Century's newest brand category that focuses on developing high-quality,
affordable residential projects. Projects under CLC will cater to first-time hory.rd buyers, startup families and
inveslors seeking safe, secure and convenient homes.

Century Properties Management, Inc.

CPMI, incorporated in 1989, is one of the largest property managemenl companies in the phitipptnes, as
measured by total gross floor area under management. CPMI cunently has 5l projects in its portfolio,
covering a total gross floor area ot 2,192,338 million sq.m. CPMI has b€en awarded 18 safety and security
distinctions from the Safety Organization ofthe Philippines.

Placing and Subscription Transaction

On February 20, 2012, CPI closed on a Placing and Subscription Tftrnsaction wherein it sold 1 ,333,333,000
shares of stock in CPGI to new investors CPlacing Tranche) at a price of P1.75 per share. Concunently, it
used the gross proceeds from the Placing Tranche, totaling Two Billion Three Hundred Thirty-Three Million,
Three Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand Seven Hundred Fifiy (Php2,333,332,750) to re-subscrib€ to new
1 ,333,333,000 shares of stock in CPGI Csubscription Tranche).

Additionally, the Company, together with CPI and APG Strategic Real Estate Pool N.V. (Apc), a
Netherlands-based pension firm, entered into a Purchase Agreement wherein CPI sold its 868,316,042 CPGI
shares of stock in favor of APG. This transaction was pursuant to the convertible bond issued by CPI to APG
in January 2011. Instead of converling the convedible bond into shares of CPl, APG and CPI entered into a
Purchase Agreement under which APG purchased the convertible bond fmm CPl. The consideration
consists of (D 868,316,042 CPGI shares owned by CPI and (ii) cash consideration As a resutt of such
transaction, CPI retired the convertible bond concunenlly with the sale ofthe CPGI shares to APG.

As a result of lhe Placing and Subscription Transaction and APGS acquisition of 868,316,042 shares of
stock, the Company's public float increas€d from 3.Qo/o to 27 .3ok. Out of the 27.3% public shares, 9.75% is
beneficially owned by APG.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLIGIES

Basis of Preparation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the financial stalements ofthe Company and
its subsidiaries (the Group). The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
historical cost basis, except for inveslment properties and available-for-sale (AFS) flnancial assets that are
measured at fair value. The consolidated financial slatements are prcsented in Philippine Peso, the Group's
functional curency. All values are rounded to the nearest peso except when otheMise indicated.

Statement of Compliance

The consolidated financial slatements ofthe Group have been prepared in compliance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standads (PFRS).

10
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Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial slatements comprise the financial stalements of the Group as at September 30,
2012 and December 31 , 2111and for each of the nine months in the period ended September i0, 2012 and
2011 .

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on which the croup obtains
conlrol, and continue to be consolidated until the dale when such control ceases. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period asthe Company, using consistent accounting
policies. All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealized gains and losses resulting from intra-grcup
transactions and dividends are eliminated in full.

Non-controlling interests (NCD repr€sent tie podion of profit or loss and net assets in subsidiaries not who y
owned and are presented separately in the consolidated statements of comprchensive income, consolidated
statements of changes in equity and consolidated statements of financial position, separately from total
equity attributable to owners of the Company. Losses within a subsidiary are aftributed to thd Ncl even if that
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. lf the Group loses conlrol over a subsidiary, it: Derecognizes the assets (including goodwill)'and
liabilities of the subsidiary, the carrying amount of any NCI and the cumulative translation ditrLrinces.
recorded in equity.

. Recognizes the fair value of the consideration received, the fair value of any investment retained
and any surplus or deficit in profit or loss.

. Reclassifies the Company's share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive
income to profit or loss or retained eamings, as appropriate.

Reverse acquisition involving a non-trading shell company

The share s:wap between CPI and the Company has been accounted for similer lo a reverse a@uisition of a
non-trading shell company. Such transaclion was accounted for in the consolidated financial statements of
the legal parenl as a continuation of the financial statements ofthe private entity (the legal subsidiary).

In accounting for such transaction, the comparative information presented in these consolidated financial
slatements is therefore that of the "CPl subs", not that originally presented in the previous financial
statements of the legal parent (accounting acquiree, which in this case is CPGI), and also is retroactively
adjusted to reflecl the legal capital of CPGI.

Because these consolidated tinancial statements represent a continuation ofthe financial slatements ofthe
cPl subsidia.ies, except for its capital structure, the consolidated financial statements reflect:

a) the assets and liabilities of CPI Subs recognized and measured at their pre-share sl,vap carrying
amounts;

b) the reiained earnings and other equity balances of the CPI Subs pre-share swap (i.e., not those of
CPGI);

c) the total equity is that of the CPI Subs butthe legal capital (common shares and AplC) would be that
of CPGI;

d) any difference between (1) net assets of CPI subs and (2) the sum ofthe legal capital ofCpGt and
the combined retained eamings ofthe cpl subs, shall be accounted for as equity reserve; ande) the income slatement for the prio[ periods reflects that of the CPI Subs while the income slatement
for the current period reflecls that of CPI Subs for the full period together with the post-share srrap
results of the Company.

11
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Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consisient with those of the previous financial year, except for the
edoption of the following new and amended PFRS and Philipptne Inlerpretations of Intemational Financial
Reporting Interpretations Committee (lFRIC) which became effective beginning January 1, 2011. Except as
otherwise indicated, the adoption ofthese new and amended standards and Philippine Interpretations did not
have any significant effect on the consolidated financial statements.

. Phif ippine Accounting Standards (PAS) 24, Related PatV Asdosures (Amendment) - The
Amendment clarifies the definition of a releted party to simplify the identification of such
relationships and to eliminate inconsistencies in its applicetion. The revised standard introduces a
partial exemption of disclosure rcquiremenls for govemment-related entilies.

. PAS 32, Financial lngruments: Presentatbn (Amendment) - Classifrcation of Rigfifs rssues - lt
amends the definition of a financial liability in order to classify ,rights issues (and certain options or
warrants) as equity instruments in cases where such rights are given pro rata to all of the existing
owners of the same class ofan entity's non-derivative equity instruments, orto acquire a fixed
number of the entity's own equity instruments for a fixed amount in any curency.

. Phifippine Interpretation IFRIC 14 (Amendment) - tuepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement
- The Amendment provides guidance on assessing the recoverable amount of a net pension asset.
The Amendment permits an entity to treat the prepayment of a minimum funding requirement as an
asset.

. Phifippf ne f nterpretation IFRIC 19, Extinguishing Financial Liabilitbs with EquW rnsfrurnents - The
Philippine Inlerpretation clarifies that equity instruments issued to a creditor to extinguish a linancial
liability qualify as consideration paid. The equity instruments issued are measured at their fair value.
ln case that this cannot be reliably measured, the instrumenls are measured at the fair value ofthe
liability exinguished. Any gain or loss is recognized immediately in prof or loss.

lmprovements to PFRSS 2010

The omnibus amendments to PFRSS issued in May 2010 were issued primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wordings. The amendmenls are effective for annual periods beginning January
1, 20'l l, except as otheMise indicated. The adoption of the following amendments resulted in changes in
accounting policies but did not have impect on the tinancial position and performance of the Group.

. PFRS 3 (Revised), Bus,:ness Combination -fhis Amendment clarifies that the Amendments to
PFRS 7 , Financial lnstruments:Disdosures, PAS 32, Finarcial Instrumefts: Presenfaf,bn and PAS
39, Financial lnstruments: Recognition and Measurement, that eliminate the exemption for
contingent consideration, do not apply to contingent consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates prec€de the application of PFRS 3 (as revised in 2008). lt also
limits the scope ofthe measurement choices that only the components of NCI that are present
ownership interesis thal enlltle their holders to a proportionate share of the entityb net assets, in the
evenl of liquidation, shall be measured either at fair value or at the present ownership inslruments'
proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable nel assets. Other components of NCI are
measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by
another PFRS.

The Amendment also requires an entity (in a business combination) lo account for the replacement
of the acquiree's share-based payment transactions (whether obliged or voluntarily), i.e., split
belween consideration and posl-combination expenses.. However, if the entity replaces the
acquiree's awards that expire as a consequence ofthe business combination, these are recognized
as post-combination exp€nses. lt further specifies the accounting for share-based payment
transactions that the acquirer does not exchange for its own awards: if vested - they are part of NCI
and measured at their market-based measure: if unvested - they are measured at market-based
value as if granted at acquisition date, and allocated between NCI and post-combination expense.
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. PFRS 7, Financial lnslruments: D,lscrosures - This amendment emohasizes the interaction between

quantitative and qualitalive disclosures and lhe nature end extent of risks essociated with financial
instruments. The amendments to quantitative and credit risk disclosures are as follows:
a. Clerify that only financial asset whose carrying amounts do not reflect the maximum exposure lo

credit risk need to provide funher disclosure of the amount that represents the maximum
exoosure to such risk.

b. Requires, for all tinancial assets, to disclose the financial effecl of collateral held as security and
other credit enhancements regarding the amount that besl represents the maximum exposure to
credit risk (e.9., a description of the ertent to which collateral mitigates credit risk).

c. Remove the disclosure of the collateral held as security, other credit enhancements and an
estimate of their fair value for Rnancial assets that are past due but not impaired, and financial
assets that are individually determined to be impaired_

d. Remove the requirement to specifically disclose financial assets renegotiated to avoid becoming
past due or impaired.

e. Clarify that the additional disclosure requird for financial assets obtained by taking possession
of collateral or other credit enhancements are only applicable to assets slill held at the reporting
date-

o PAS 1 , Presentation of Financrbl Sfatemenfs - This Amendment clarifies that an entity will present
an analysis of other comprehensive income for each component of equity, either in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity or in the notes to the consolidated financial statemenls.

r PAS 27, Consolidatect aN Separate Financial Statemenfs * This Amendment clarifies that the
consequential amendments from PAS 27 made to PAS 21, me Etrect of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates, PAS 28, ,nvestmenfs ,:n Associafes and PAS 31 , /nteresfs in Johrt Ventures apply
prospectively for annual periods beginning on or atter July 1, 2009 or earlier when PAS 27 is applied
earlier.

. PAS 34, tnteim Financial Re@fting - This Amendment requires additional disclosures for fair values
and changes in classification of financial assets, as well as changes to contingent assets and
liabilities in interim condensed financial statements.

. Phifippine Interpretetion lFRlc 13, Customer Loyary Programmes -Tnis Amendment clarifies that
when the fair value of award credits is measured based on the value of the awards for which they
could be redeemed, the amount of discounts or incentives otherwise granted to customers not
participating in the award crcdit scheme, is to be taken into account.

Future Ghanges in Accounting Policies

The Group will adopt the following new and amended standards and Philippine Interpretations enumerated
below when these become effective. The Group does not expect the adoption of these new and amended
PFRS and Philippine Interpretations to have significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Efiective 2012

PAS '12, lncome Taxes (Amendrnent) - Detened Tax: Reavery of lJndedying Assefs - The
Amendmenl provides a pracdical solution to the problem of assessing whether recovery of an asset
will b€ through use or sale. lt introduces a presumption that recovery of the carrying amount of an
asset will normally be through sale.

PFRS 7, Financiat Instruments: Disctosures - Enhan@d Dere@gnition Di&losure Requirenents -
The amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or aner July 1 , 2Ol 1. The
amendment requires additional disclosure about financial assets lhat have been transfened but not
derecognized to enable the user of the entity's financial statements !o understand the relationship
with those assets that have not been derecognized and their associated liabilities. In addition, the
amendment requires disclosures about continuing involvement in derecognized assets to enable the
user to evaluate the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity's continuing involvement in those
derecognized assets.

Effective 2013
PAS 1 , F,hafloal Sfatemerrt Preserrtation - Preserrtation of ltems of Other ComprehensMe hrcome -
The amendments to PAS 1 change the grouping of items presented in OCl. ltems that could be
reclassified (or "recycled) to rofit or loss at a future point in time (for example, upon derecognition
or setllemer ) would be presented separately frcm items that will never bb reclassified. The
amendment becomes effeclive for annual periods beginning on or afler July j, 2012.

PAS 19, Employee Eene,ifs (Amepdment) - Amendments to pAS 19 range from fundamental
changes such as removing the corridor mechanism and the concept of expocted retums on plan
ass€ts to simple clarifications and rewoding. The company is cunenfly assessing the impact of the
amendmenl to PAs 19. The amendmenl becomes effeciive forannual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2013.

PAS 27, Separafe Financial Statements (as revised in 2Ol 1) - As a consequence of the new PFRS
10, Consolidated Financial Statement and PFRS 12, Disclosure of lnterests,;1 Other Entities, wnal
remains of PAS 27 is limited to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities, and associares
in separate financial statements. The Company does not present separate financial statements. The
amendment becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

PAS 28, lnvesfmenfs in Associates aN Joint ventures (as revised in 2011) As a consequence of the
new PFRS 11, Joint Arangemenfs and PFRS 12, pAS 28 has been renamed pAS 28, ,nvestmenfs
in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the applicetion of the equity method to investments
in joint ventures in addition to associates. The amendment becomes effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1 , 2013.

PFRS 7, Financial inslrumefts: Ascbsures - Offself:ng Financiat Assets anct Financiat Liabilities -
These amendments require.an entity to disclose information about rights of set-off and related
arrangements (such as collaterai agreements). The new disclosures ar'e required for all recognized
financial instruments that are set off in accodance with pAS 32. These'disclosures also apply to
recngnized financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable master netting arrangemenl or
'similar agreement', inespective of whether they are set-off in accordance with pAS 32. The
amendments require entities to disclose, in a tabular format unless another format is more
appropriate, the following minimum quantitative information. This is presented separately for
financial assets and financial liabilities recogni2ed at the end of the reporting period:

a. The gross amounts of those recognized financial assets and recognized financial liabilities.b. The amounts that are s€t off in accordance with the criteria in PAS 32 when determining the net
amounls presented in the statement of financial position;

c. The net amounts presented in the statement of financial positioni
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d. The amounts subject to an enforceable master netting arTangement or similar agreement that

are not otheMise included in (b) above, including:
i. Amounts related to recognized financial instruments that do not meet some or all of the

offsetting qiteria in PAS 32; and
ii. Amounts related to financial collateral (including cash collateral); and e. The net amount

affer deducting the amounts in (d) from the amounts in (c) above.

The amendments to PFRS 7 are to be retrospectively applied for annual periods beginning on or
after January 1,2013.

. PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements - PFRS 10 replaces the portion of pAS 27,
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated
financial statements. lt also includes the issues raised in SlG12, Consolidation - Sp€cial Purpose
Entities. PFRS 10 establishes a single control model that applies to all entities including special
purpose entities. The changes introduced by PFRS 10 will require management to exercise
significant judgmenl to determine which entities are controlled, and therefore, are required to be
consolidated by a parent, compared with the requirements that were in PAS 27. This standard
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or aner January 1, 2013

. PFRS '11 , Joint Anangemerts - PFRS 1 1 replaces PAS 31, tnterests in Joint Venfures and SIC-13,
Jointly-contro ed Entities -Non-nonetary Contributions by Venturers. PFRS 11 removes the ootion to
account forjointly controlled entities (JCEs) using proportionate Qonsolidation. Instead, JCEs that
meet the definition of a joint venture must be accounted for using the equity method. This standard
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

o PFRS 12, Disclosurcs of tnterests in Other Enfties - PFRS 12 includes all of the disclosures that
were previously in PAS 27 related to consolidated financial statements, as well as all ofthe
disclosures lhat were previously included in PAS 31 and PAS 28. These disclosures relate to an
entity's interes{s in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured entities. A number of
new disclosures are also required. This standard becomes effective for ahnual periods beginning on
or after January 1 , 2013.

o PFRS 13, Fair Value Measuremenf - PFRS 13 esleblishes a single source of guidance under PFRS
for all fair value measurements. PFRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair
value, but rather provides guidance on howto measure fair value under PFRS when fair value is
required or permitted. The Company is currenlly assessing the impaci that this slandad will have on
the financial position and performance. This standard becomes effec{ive for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

Effective 2014
. PAS 32, Financial lnslruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Finarcial Liabilities -

These amendments to PAS 32 clarify the meaning of "cunentty has a legally enforceable right to set
off and also clarify the applicetion of the PAS 32 offsetting criteria to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross setflement mechanisms that are not
simultaneous. While the amendment is expected not to have any impac{ on the net assets of the
Company, any changes in offsetting is expected to impact levelage ratios and regulatory capital
requirements. The amendments to PAS 32 are to be retrospeciively applied for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1,2lq.fne Company is curren y assessing impact of the
amendments to PAS 32.
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Effective 2015
. PFRS 9, Financial lnstrumerrts: Classification and Measurenent - PFRS 9, as issued in 2010,

reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and applies to clasefication and measurement
of financial assets and financial liatilities as denned in PAS 39. The standard is effec{ive for annual
periods beginning on or after January 1 , 2015. In subsequent phases, hedge accounting and
impairment of financial assets will be addressed with the completion ofthis project expec{ed on the
first half of 2012. The adoption ofthe first phase of PFRS 9 will have an effect on the classification
and measurement of the Group's finencial assets, but will potentially have no impacl on
classification and measurements of financial liabilities.

The Group does not expect to implement and adopt PFRS 9 until its effec'tive date or until all
chapters of new standards have been published. Nevertheless, management is cunently assessing
the impac{ of PFRS I on the financial statements of the Group and is committed to conduct a
comprehensive sludy of the potential impacl of this siandard to assess the impact of all changes.

. Philippine lnterpretation lFRlc 15, Agreeme nt for consrruction of Real Estate,covers accounting for
revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake the conslruciion of real estate directly or
through subcontraclors- The Interpretation requires that revenue on construction of real estate be
recognized only upon complelion, except when such contract qualifies as a construction contract to
be accounted for under PAS '11, Construdion Contracts, or involves rendering of seNices in which
case revenue is recqnized based on stage of completion. Cor racts involving provision of seNices
with the conslruction materials and where the risks and reward of ownership are transfened to the
buyer on a continuous basis will also be accounted for'based on siage of completion. The SEC and
the Financial Reporting Stendards Council (FRSC) have defened the effectivity of this interpretation
until the final Revenue s{andard is issued by Intemational Accountino Standards Board (IASB) and
an evaluation of the requirements of the final Revenue slandard against the practices of the
Philippine real estate industry is completed.

The adoption of the Philippine Interpretation may significantly affect the determination of the revenue
from real es{ate sales and the conesponding costs, and the related trade receivables, deferred tax
liabilities and retained eamings accounts. The Group is in the process of quantifying the impact of the
adoption of this Interpretation.

cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three (3) months or less
from dates of plac€men! and are subjecl to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Financial Instruments

a) Date of recognition - The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the parent
company statement of financial position when it becomes a party to the codtraclual provisions
of the instrument. Purchases or sales of financial assets thal require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convenlion in lhe marketplace are recognized on
the settlement date. Derivatives are also recognized on a trade date basis.

b) Initial reoognition of financial instruments - All financial assets ahd financial liabilities are
initially recognized at fair value. Except for financial instruments at fair value through profit or
loss (FVPL), the initial measurement of financial assets and liabilities includes transaction costs.
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The Group classifies its Rnancial assets in the following categoriesi financial assets at FVPL,
held-to-maturity (HTM) financial essets, AFS financial assets and loans and receivable. The
Group classifies its financial liabilities into financial liabilities at FVPL, derivative liabilities and
other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for whioh the investments
were acquired and whether they are quoted in an aciive market. The Group determines the
classification of its inveslment at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates such designation at every reporting date.

The Group's financial assets and financial liabitifies are ofthe nature of loans and receivables,
AFS financial assets, and other financial liabilities, respectively.

c) Determination of fair value - The fair value for financial instruments traded in ac{ive martets at
the reporting date is bas€d on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for
long positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduclion for transaction costs.
When cunent bid and asking prices are not available, the price of the most recent transaction
provides evidence of the cunent fair value as long as there has been no significant change in
economic circumslances since the time of the transeclion.

For all other financial instruments not listed in an ac{ive market; the fair value is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques. Valuation techniques include net present value
techniques, comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices eist, options
pricing models, and other relevant valuation models.

d) Day 1 difference - Where the transaction price in a non-active market is different than the fair
value frcm other observable current market transacdions ofthe same instrument or based on a
valuation technique whose variables include only data from obseNable martet, the Company
recognizes the difference between the transaclion price and fair value (a 'Day 1' difference) in
profit or loss unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where use
is made of data which is not observable, the difference between lhe transaction price and model
value is only recognized in profit or loss when the inputs become gbservable orwhen the
inslrument is derecognized. For each lransaction, the Group determines the appropriate
method of recognizing the 'Day 1' difference amount.

Loans and rcceivables

Loans and receivables are nonderivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that are not quoted in an aclive market. These are not entered into with the intention of
immediate or short-term resale and are not designated as AFS or financial assets at FVPL. This
accounting policy relates to the Group's statement of financial position captions "Cash and cash
equivalents", "Rec€ivables' (excluding receivables attributable to employees) and 'Due from related
parties."

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective inlerest rate method, less allowance for impairment losses. Amortized cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate. The amortization, if any, is included in proftt or loss.

The losses arising from impairment of loans and receivables are recognized in profil or loss under
"Provision for impairment losses" account.
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AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivative financial assets which are designaled as such or do not qualify
to be classified as designated as at FVPL, HTM, or loans and receivables.

Financial assets may be designated at initial recognition as AFS if they are purchased and held
indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market conditions. AFS
financial assets include equity investments.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are measured at fair value. The unrealized gains and
losses arising from the fair valuation ofAFS financial assels are in olher comprehensive income and are
reported as "Unrealized gain on AFS financial assets" in the Group's slatement of flnancial position.

When the security is disposed of, the cumulative gain or loss, previously recognized under 'Unrealized
gain or loss on AFS financial assets' is recognized in profit or loss under "Other income" account or
'Miscellaneous expenses" account. Where the Group holds more than one investment in the same
security, these are deemed to be disposed of on a first-in, first-oqt besis. The losses arising from
impairment of such investments are recognized in profit or loss under the 'Miscellaneous expenses'
account.

Other flnancial assets are classified as cunent assets when the Group has the contraciual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from another entity within twelve (12) months from the reporting
date.

As of september 30,2012 and December 201 1 , AFS financial assets comprise of quoted equity
securities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities pertain to issued financial instruments that are not classified or designated as
financial liabilities at FVPL and contain contractual obligations to deliver cash or other financial assets to
the holder or to setle the obligation other than the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or anolher
financial asset for a fixed number of own equity shares. Affer inilial meesuremenl, other financia.
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effeclive interest rate method.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on the issue and fees that
are an integral part of the effecdive interest rate.

This accounting policy applies primarily to the Group's "Accounts and other payables", "Due to related
parties", "Long-term debt', and other obligations that meet the above definition (other than liabilities
covered by other accounting standads, such as income tax payable and pension liabilities).

other financial liabilities are classified as cunent liabilities when it is expected to be settled within 12
months from the financial position date orthe Group does not have an unconditional right to defer
settlement for at least 12 months from the reporting date.
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lmpairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed to be
impaired if, and only if, there is objec-tive evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
has occuned afler the initial recognition of the asset (an incured'loss event') and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the eslimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indicetions that the borrower
or a group of bonowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or othor financial reolganization and
where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows.
such as changes in errears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Loans and receivables

For loans and receivables carried at amortized cosl, the Group first assesses whether objective evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collec'tively for
financial assets that are nol individually significent. lf there is objec{ive evidence that an impairment
loss has been incun€d, the amount ofthe loss is measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value ofthe estimatd future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
lhal have not been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use ofan
allowance account and the amount of loss is charged to the profit of loss. Interest income continues to
be recognized based on the original effective inleresl rate ofthe asset. Receivables, together with the
associated allowance accounts, are written off when there is no realislic prospect of future recovery and
all collateral has been realized. lf, in a subseguent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss
decreases because of an event o@urdng after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognized in
pront or loss, to the extent that the carrying value ofthe asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the
reversal date.

lf the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for individually assessed
financial asset, whether significent or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses for impairmenl. Those characteristics are relevant to
the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtors' ability to
pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated. Assets that are
individually assess€d for impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be recognized
are not included in a collective assessment for impairment.

For the purpose of a collec{ive evaluation of impairment, financial assets are group€d on the basis of
such credit risk characteristics as type of countenparty, credit history, past due status and term.

Fulure cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collec{ively evaluated for impairment arc
estimated on the basis of historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characlerislics similar to
those in the Group. Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of cunent observable data to
reflect the effecls of cunent conditions that did not affec{ the period on which the historical loss
exoerience is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the historical oeriod that do not exist
currently. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed
regularly by the Group to reduco any differences between loss eslimales and actual loss experience.
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AFS financial assets

For AFS financiel assets, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is objecdive evidence
that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, this would include a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below their costs. Vvhere there is evidence of
impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in other
comprehensive income - is removed from other comprehensive income and recognized in profit or loss.
lmpairment losses on equity investmen(s are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in fair value
after impairment are recognized directly in other comprehensive income.

In the case of debt inslruments classified as AFS financial assets, impairment is assessed based on the
same criteria as financial assets canied at amortized cost. Future interest income is based on the
reduced carrying amount and is accrued basecl on the rate of intefest used to discount future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring impairment loss. Such ac,crual is recorded as part of "lnlerest income" in
profit or loss. lf, in subsequent year, the fair value ofa debt instrument increased and the increase can
be objeclively related to an event occuning aflerthe impairment loss was recognized in profrt or loss, the
impairment loss is reveGed through profit or loss.

Derccognition of Financial Assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a gloup of similar financial
assets) is derecognized when:

a) the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;
b) the croup retains the right to receive cash flows from the ass€t, but has assumed as obligation

to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through' arangement; or
c) the Group has transfened its rights to receive cash flows from.the assel and either (i) has

transfered substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or (ii) has neither transferred nor
retained the risk and rewards of the asset but has transfered the control of lhe asset.

Where the Group has transfened its rights to receive cash flours fmm an asset or has entered into a
"passthrough' anangemenl, and has neither transfened nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the eldent of the
Group's continuing involvement in the asset. continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transfened asset is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

Derecognition of Financial liability

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is dischalged, cancelled, or has
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, orthe terms of an exisling liability are subslantially modified, such an

exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in profit or loss.
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Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the Group's statement
of flnancial position if, and only if, there is a curently enforceable legal right to offs€t the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously-

Real Estate Inventories

Real estate inventories are canied at ihe lower of cost or net realizable value (NRV).

Cost includes those costs incurred for the development ard improvement of the properties such as
amounts paid to contrac{ors for construction, capitalized bonowing costs, planning and design costs,
crsts of site preparation, professional fees for legal services, property transfer taxes, conslruc{ion
overheads and other related costs.

NRV is the estimated selling price in the ordinary couFe of business, less estimated costs of completion
and es{imated costs necessary to make the sale such as commissions.

Borrowing costs

Borowing c,osts directly attributable to the acquisition, construclion or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as
part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borowing costs are expensed in the period they
occur. Bonowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in conneclion with the
bonowing of funds.

The interest capitalized is calculated using the Groupls weighted average cost of bonowings after
adjusting for bonowings associated with specific developments. Where bonowings are associated with
specific developments, the amounts capitalized is the gross interes{ incuned on those bonowings less
any investment income arising on their temporary inveslment. Interesl is capitalized from the
commencement of the development work until the date of practical completion. The capitalization of
finance cost is suspended ifthere are prolonged periods when development activity is interupted.
Interest is also capitalized on the purchas€ cost of a site of property acquired specifically for
development, but only where activities are neoessary to prepare the asset for the development are in
progress.

lnterest in Joint Ventur€

Interest in joint venture is limited to jointly controlled operations entered into by the Group to various
landowners forthe development ofthe relevant real estate properties. A jointly controlled operation
involves the use of assets end other resources of the Group and such landowners rather than the
establishment of a corporation, partnership or other entily. The Group and such third parties recognize in
their financial statements the assets that it controls and the liabilities that it incurs, the expenses it incurs
and the share of income that it eams from the sale of goods or services by the joint venture. Ac@dingly,
the Group recognized in the consolidated financial statements the relevant assets and liabilities to the
extent of its contribution to the joint venture.
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Investment Properties

lnitially, investment properties are measured al cost including certain transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, inveslment properties are stated at fair value, which reflecls maftet conditions at the
reporting date. The fair value of investment properties is determined by independent real estate
valuation exp€rts based on recent real estate transactions with similar characteristics and location to
those of the Group's inveslmenl properties. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

Investment properties are derecognized when eilherthey have been disposed oforwhen the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefii is expecied from its
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset is
recognized in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a transfer
from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the
fair value at the date of change in use. lf owner occupied propeny becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the policy slated under property and equipment up
to the date of change in us€. For a lransfer from investment property to inventories, the change in use is
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to sale. When the Group decides to dispose
of an invesilment property without development, it continues to treat the property as an investmeni
property until it is derecognized and does not treat it as inventory. Similady, if an entity begins to
redevelop an existing investment property for continued future use as investment property, the property
remains an investmenl property and is not reclassified as owner-occupied property during the
redevelopment.

For a transfer from investment property caried at fair value to invenlories, the property's deemed cost
for subsequent accounting shall be its fair value at the date of change in use.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are canied at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization and any
impairment in value.

The initial cost of property and equipment consisls of its purchase price, including import duties, taxes
and any direcdly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its wofting condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditures incuned afterthe property plant and equipment have been put into
operation, such as repairs and maintenance are normally charged against operations in the period in
which the costs are incurred. ln situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures
have resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an
item of property plant and equipment beyond its originally assessed slandard of performance, the
expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of property and equipment.

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment commences once the property and equipment
are put into operational use and is computed on a slraightline basis over the estimated useful life of the
property and equipment as follows:

Office equipment
Computer equipment
Fumiture and fixtures
Transportation equipment
Construction equipment

Years
3-5
3-5
3-5
5'
5
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Leasehold improvements are amorlized on a straiohiJine basis over the term of the lease or ih€
estimated useful life of the asset of five (5) years, whichever is shorter.

The useful lives and depreciation and amortization method are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
period and method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with thle expected pattem of
economic benefits from items of property and equipment.

When property and equipment are retired or otheMise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation and emortizetion and accumulated provision for impairment losses, if any, are removed
from the accounts and any resulting gain or loss is credited to or charged against current operations.

Fully depreciated assets are retained in the accounts until they are no longer in use and no further
depreciation and amortization is charued against cunent operations.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are canied at cost less any accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses. lntemally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized
development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflecded in the profit or loss in the year in
which the expenditure is incuned.

The useful lives of intangible assels are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized overthe useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at
each financial year end. Changes in the expecled useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of
future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changirig the amortization period or
method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the expens€ category of the profit or loss consistent
with the function of the intangible asset.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment. The
assessmenl of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be
supportable. lf not, the change in useful life from indefinile to finite is made on a prospec{ive basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset ate measured as the difference
between the net disposel proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel. and are recognized in the
Group's sialement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognized.

As of September 30,2012 and December 31, 2011, the Group's intangible assets consist of soflware
costs and irademarks.

a) Software costs - Intangible assets include costs associated with developing or maintaining
computer software programs are recognized as ari expense as iicurred. Costs that are directly
associated with identifiable and unique software. controlled by the Group and will generate
economic benefits exceeding costs beyond one year, are recognized as intangible assets to be
measurcd at cost less accumulated amortization,and accumulaled impairment, if any.

Expenditures which enhance or extend the performance of computer software programs
beyond their original specifications are recognized as capital improvemenls and added to the
original cost of the sonware. System developrnent cosis, recognized as assets, are amodized
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using the straight-linQ method overtheir useful lives, but not exceeding a period of 5 years.
Where an indication of impairmenl exists, the carrying amount of system devolopment costs is
assessed and written down ammediately to its recoverable amount. OtheMise, such costs are
recognized as expense as incured.

b) Trademarks - Licenses for use of intellectual property have been granted for a period of ten
(10) years by the relevant govemmenl agency. The trademarks provide the oplion of renewal
at little or no cost to the Group. As a result, those lic€nses are assessed as having indefinite
useful life.

lmpairment of Non-financial Assets

The Group assesses as at reporting date whether there is an indication that its non-financial assets (i.e.,
property and equipment and intangible assets) may be impaired. lf any such indication exists, or when
annual impairment tesling for an asset is required, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's
recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable amount is calculated as the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent ofthose from other
assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their plesent value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflec{s cunent market assessmerfi of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
lmpairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the expense categories in profrt or loss
consistent with the function of the imoaired asset.

An assessmenl is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. lf such indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognized impairment loss is rcversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to detemine the asset's recoverable amount since the last
impairment loss was recognized. lf that is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to its
recoverable amount. That increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the profit or loss unless the asset is carried at
revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated as revaluation increase. After such a reversal,
lhe depreciation and amorlization charge is adjusled in future periods to allocate the asset's revised
carrying amount, less any residual value, on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life.

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares
attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown

Retained Earnangs

issued. Incremental costs incuned direclly
in equity as a deduction from proceeds, net of tax.

Retained earnings represent accumulated eamings ofthe Group less any dividends declared, if any.
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Equity rcserve

Equity reserve represents any difference between (1) net assets of CPI subs and (2) the sum ofthe legal
capilal of CPGI and the combined retained eamings of the CPI subs as a result of the accounting for
reverse acquisition involving a non-lrading shell company.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the croup
and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured: The Group assesses its revenue arrangements
against specific criteria in oderto determine if it is acling as principal or agent. The Group has
concluded that it is acting as principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

a) Real estate sales - the Group assesses whether it is probable that the economic benefits will
Row to the Group when the sales prices are collectible. Collectibility of the s€les price is
demonslrated by the buyer's commitment to pay, which in tum is supported by substantial inilial
and continuing inveslments that give the buyer a stake in the property sufficient that the risk of
loss through default motivates the buyerto honor its obligation to the seller. Collectibility is also
assess€d by considering factors such as the credit standing of the buyer, age and location of
the property.

Revenue from sales of completed real estate projects is accounted fof using the full accrual
method. In accordance with Philippine Interpretations Committee (PlC) Q&A No. 200G01, the
percentage-of-comptetion method is used to recognize income from sales of poects where the
Group has material obligations under the sales contract to complete the poeci after the
property is sold, the equitable interest has been transfened to the buyer, construction is beyond
preliminary stage (i.e., engineering, design work, cons{ruc'tion contracts execution, site
clearance and preparation, excavation and the building foundation are finished), and the costs
incuned orto be incuned can be measured reliably. Underthis method, revenue is recognized
as the related obligations are fulfilled, measured principally on the basis of the eslimated
completion of a physical proportion of lhe crntract work.

Any excess of collections overthe recognized receivables are included in the "Customers'
advances and deposits" account in the "Liabilities" section ofthe consolidated statement of
financial position.

lf any of the criteria under the full accrual or percentage-of-completion method is not met, the
deposit method is applied until all the conditions for recording a sale are met. Pending
recognition of sale, cash received from buyers are presented under the 'Customers' advances
and deposits' accour{ in the "Liabilities" section of the consolidated slatement of financial
posilion.

b) lnterest income - Interest income is recognized as it accrues (using the effective interest
method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial inslrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset).

c) Income from cancelled sales - Income from cancelled sales is recognlzed when the deposils
from potential buyers are deemed nonrofundable due to prescription ofthe period for entering
into a contracted sale. Such income is also recognized, subject to the provisions of Republic
Act 6552, Realty Instatln ent Buyer Protection (Maceda Law), upon prescription of the period for
the payment of required amonizations from defaulting buyers.
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d) Commission income - Commission income is recognized by reference to the percentage of
colleclion of the agreed sales price or depending on the term of the sale as provided under the
marketing agreement.

e) Dividend income - Dividend income is recrgnized when the Groupb right to receive the
payment is established.

D Management fees - Revenue from property management and other services is recognized
when the related services are rendered.

g) Other income - Other cuslomer related fees such as penalties and surcharges are recognized
as they accrue, taking into accrunt the provisions ofthe related contract.

Cost and Erpense Recognition

a) Cost of real estate sales -.Cost of real estate sales is recognized consistent with the revenue
recognition method applied. Cost of condominium units sold before the completion of the
development is determined on the basis of the acquisition cosl of the land plus its full
development costs, which include estimated costs for future development worlc, as determined
by the Groupb in-house technical staff.

b) Commission and other selling expenses - Selling expenses such as commissions paid to sales
or marketing agents on the sale of precompleted real estate units are defened when recovery is
reasonably expected and are charged to expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognized as eamed. These are recoded as "Deferred selling expenses" under "Prepaymenls
and olher currenl assets" account. Accordingly, when the percentage of completion method is
used, commissions are likewise charged to expense in the period the related revenue is
recognized.

c) General and administrative expenses - General and administrative expenses conslitute costs of
administering the business and are expensed as incurted.

Pension Cost

Retirement cost is computed using the projected unit credit method. This method reflects services
rendered by employees up to the date of valuation and incorporates assumptions conceming employees'
projected salaries. Actuarial valuations are conducted with sufficient regularity, with an option to
accelerate when significant changes to underlying assumptions occur. Pension cost includes curent
service cost, interest cos1, expected retum on any plan assets, actuarial gains and losses, past seNice
cost and the effect of any curtailment or settlemenl.

The liability recognized by the Group in respect of the defined benefit pension plan is the present value
of the d€fined benefit obligation at the reporting date together with adiustments for unrecrgnized
actuarial gains or losses and past service costs that shall be recognized in later periods. The defined
benefit obligation is calculated by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The
present value ofthe defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the eslimated future cash
outflows using risk-free interest rates of govemment bonds that have tetms to malurity approximating to
the terms of the related pension liabilities or applying a single weighted average discount rate that
reflects the estimated timing and amount of benefit payments.
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Actuarial gains and losses are recognized as income or expense when the net cumulativ€ unrecognized
actuarial gains and losses ofthe defined benefit plan at the end ofthe previous reporting year exceeded
10o/o of the higher of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets
at that date. These aciuarial gains or losses are recognized over the expeded average remaining
working lives of the employees participating in the defined benefit plan.

The past service cost is recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis over the average period until
the beneflts become vested. lf the benefits are already vesled immediately following the introduction of,
or changes to, a retirement plan, past service cosl is recognized immediately.

Operating Leases

The determination of whether an anangement is, or crntains, a lease is based on the substance of the
arrangement at inception date, whether fulfillment of the anangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets or the arangement conveys a right to use the asset. A reassessment is made
after inception of the lease only if one of the following applies:

a) There is a change in contraclual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arangement;
b) A renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term ofthe renewal or extension

was initially included in the lease term;
c) There is a change in the determination of whether fulfillment is dependent on a specified asset;

or
d) There is substantial change to the asset.

Where a reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumslances gave rise to the reassessmenl for scenarios (a), (c), or (d) and at the date of
renewal or e)dension period for scenario (b).

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and benefits of the ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Fixed lease payments are recognized on a straightline basis overthe
lease while the variable rent is recognized as an expense based on the terms of the lease contract-

lncome Taxes

a) Cunent tax - Current tax ass€ts and liabilities for the cunent and prior periods are measured at
the amount expected to be recovercd from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and
tax laws used to compute the amount are those that have been enacted or substantively
enacted as of the reporting date.

b) Deferred tax - Defered lax is pmvided, using the liability method, on temporary differences,
with certain exceptions, at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred lax liabilities are recognized forall taxable temporary differences, including asset
revaluations. Defered tax assets are recognized for all dductible temporary differences, carry
foMard b€nefit of unused tax credits from the excess of minimum corporate income tax (MCIT)
over regular corporate income tax (RCIT), and unused net operating loss canyover (NOLCO),
to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the carry foMard of unused tax credits from excess
MCIT over RCIT and unused NoLCO can be utilized. Deferred tax, however, is not recognized
on temporary differences that arise from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting income nor taxable income.
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The carrying amount of defered tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the defened tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are
reassessecl at each reporting date and are recognized lo the exenl that it has become
probable thet future taxable profn will allorv the defened tax asset to be recovered.

Defened tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws
that have been enacled or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Defened tax assels and defered tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets adainst curent tax liabilities and the defen€d taxes telate to the same
taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Foreign Curency Transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign curencies are initially recorded using the exchange rates prevailing
at transaction dates. Foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and liabilities are retranslated
using the closing exchange rates at reporting date. Exchange gains or losses arising from foreign
currency transactions are credited or charged against cuffent operations.

Segment Reporting

The Group's operating businesses are organizd and managed separately according to the nature ofthe
products and services provided, with each segment representing a strategic'business unit that offers
different oroducls and serves different markets. Financial information on the Group's business segments
is oresented in Note 4 to the consolidated financial slatements.

Provisions

Provisions arc recognized when the Group has a pres€nt obligation (legal or conslruclive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resouroes embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable eslimate can be made of the smount of the obligation. Where the
Group expects a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but
only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. lf the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expecfed future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
curent market asse$sments of the time value of money and, uriere appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. Where discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is

recognized as interest expense. Provisions are reviewed at each repo.ting date and adjusted to reflect
the cunent besl eslimate.

Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share (EPS) is computed by dividing net income attributable to common slockholders
by the weighted average number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year and
adjusted to give retroactive effect to any stock dividends declared during the p€riod. Diluted EPS is
computed by dividing net income atributable to common equity holders by the weighted average
number of common shares issued and outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
common shares that would be issued on conversion of ell the dilutive potential common shares. The
calculation of diluted EPS does not assume conversion, exercise or other issue of potential common
shares that would have an antidilutive effect on eamings per share.
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For purposes ofthe share svrap transaction, the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding (the denominator of the eamings per share calculation) is:

a) the number of crmmon shares outstanding from the beginning of the year to the transaction
date shall be computed on the basis of the weighted average number of common sheres of the
CPI subs oritstanding during the period multiplied by the exchange ratio established in the share
swap agreement; and

b) the number of common shares outslanding from the acquisition date to the reporting period
shall be the actual number of ordinary shares of the Parent Company outslanding during that
period.

The basic eamings per share for each comparstive period before the share s:wap date presented in the
consolidated financiel statements following the share slirap shall be calculated by dividing the profit or
loss of CPI subs attributable to common shareholders in each of those periods by CPI subs's historical
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding multiplied by the exchange ratio established in
the share savap agreement.

As of September 30, 2012 and December 31,
ootential common shares.

2011, the Parent Company and CPI subs have no dilutive

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the Group's financial statements but are disclosed unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefrts is remote. Contingent assets are not
recognized in the Group's financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable (see Note 17).

Events After the Reporting Period

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Group's position at the reporting date
(adjusling eveng are reflecled in the Group's financial statements. Post year-end events that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the Group's financial statements when material.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Group to
make judgments and estimates that affec{ the amounts reporied in the parent company financial
slatements and notes. The judgments, eslimales and assumptions used in the accompanying Group's
financial statements are based upon management's evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of
the date of the Group's financial statements. Future events may occur which will cause the judgments

and assumptions used in aniving at the estimates to change. The effec{s of any change in judgments

and estimates are reflected in the Group's financial statements asthey become reasonably
determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events lhat are b€lieved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
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Judgments

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgments, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the Company's financial statements.

a) Revenue and cost recognition - Selecting an appropriate revenue recognition method for a
particular real estate sale transaction requires certain judgments based on, among others:

o Buye/s commitment on the sale wtrich may be ascertained through the significance of
the buyeds initial inves{ment; and

. Stage of completion ofthe projecl.

b) Operating lease commitments (Group as lessee) - Th€ cmup has entered into contracts of
lease with La Costa Development Corporation (formerly Penta Pecific Realty Corporation) and
other unit owners of the Pacific Star Building for its adminiSrative office location and model units
for ongoing projects. The Group has determined that these are operating leases since it does
not bear substantially all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties. In
determining significant risks and benefits of ownership, the Group considered, among others, the
significence of the lease lerm as compared with the esiimated useful life of the related asset.

c) Distinction between investment properties and land held for future development - The Group
determines a property as inveslment property if such is not intended for sale in the ordinary
course of business, but are held primarily to eam rental income and capital appreciation. Land
held for future development comprises property that is held for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Principally, this is residential property that the Group develops and intends to sell
before or on completion of construction.

d) Distinction between investment properties and owner-occupied properties - The croup
determines whether a property qualifies as an investment property. ln making its judgment, the
Group considers wheiher the property generates cash flows largely independent ofthe other
assets held by an entity. Owner-occupied prop€rties generate cash flows that are attributable not
only to property but also to the other assets used in the produclion or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to eam rentals or for cepital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the producdion or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. lfthese portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted
for as an investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judgment is applied in determining
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in making its judgment.

e) Distinction between real estate inventories and land held for future development - The Group
determines whether a land qualifies as land held for future development once the Group has a
concrete plan on how the land shall be developed the following year. The Group shall then
classify the land as part of the real estale inventories upon the commencement of the actual
development of the land.
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0 lmpairment of AFS finencial assets - The Group treats AFS financial assets as impaired when

there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other
objeclive evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is 'significant' or 'prolonged'
requires judgment. The Group treats 'significant' generally as 20% oi more of the originat cost of
inveslmenl and 'prolonged' as greater than six (6) months for quoted equity securities. In
addition, the Group evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted
equities and the fulure cash flows and the discount faciors for unquoted equities.

g) Provisions and Contingencies - The Group is cunently involved in various legal proceedings.
The estimate ofthe probable costs for the resolution of these claims has been developed ln
consultation with outside counsel handling the defense in these matlers and is based upon an
analysis of potential results. The Group cunently does not believe that these proceedings will
have a material effect on the Group's Rnancial position. lt is possible, however, that future
results of operations could be materially affected by changes in the estimates or in the
effec{iveness of lhe strategies relating to these proceedings.

Management's Use of EstimaGs and Assumptions

The key assumptions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that have a signilicant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the neld Rnancial year are discussed below.

a) Revenue and cost recognition -The Group's revenue recognition policies require management
to make use of estimates and assumptions that may affed the reported amounts of revenue and
costs. The Group's revenue from real estate recognized based on the peroentage of completion
are meesured principally on the basis of the eslimated cohpletion of d physical proponion of the
contract wort, and by reference to the actual costs incuned to date overthe estimated total
costs of the project. The rate of completion is validated by the responsible department to
determine whether il approximates the actual completion rate. Changes in eslimate may affect
the reported amounts of revenue and cost of real estate sales and receivables. Carrying value
of the real eslate receivables amounted to P5,193.4 million and P1,762.3 million as of
September 30, 2012 and December 3'l , 2011, respectively (see Nqte 6).

b) Fair value of investmenl properties - The Group cenies its investment properties at fair value,
with changes in fair value being recognized in profit or loss. The Group engages independent
valuation specialists to determine the fair value. For the invesiment property, the appraisers
used a valuation technique based on comparable market data available for such properties.
There was no gain or loss on changes in fair value of inveslment prcperties during the period
ended September 30,2012 and 2010. Carrying value ofthe investment properties amounted to
P1,580.8 million and P'|,119.2 million as of September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011,
respectively (see Note 11).

c) Estimating allowance for impairment losses - The Group reviews its loans and receivables at
each reporting date to assess whether an allowance for impairment should b€ recoded in the
consolidated statement of financial position and any changes theteto in profit or loss. In
particular, judgment by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cesh flows when determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates are based
on assumptions about a number of factors. Actual results may also differ, resulting in future
changes to the allowance.

The Group maintains allowance for impairment losses based on the result of the individual and
Golleclive assessment under PAS 39. Underthe individual assessment, the Group is required to
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Receivables (Note 6)
Due from related parties

d) Estimating NRV of real estate inventories and land held for future developmenl - The Group
revielvs the NRV of real estate inventories and land held for future development and compares it
with the cost since assets should not be canied in excess of amounts expecded to be realized
from sale. Real estate inventories and land held for future development are written down below
cost when the eslimated NRV is found to be lower than the cosl.

NRV for completed real estate inventories and land held for future development is assessed with
refercnce to ma*et conditions and prices existing at the reporting date and is determined by the
Group having taken suitable extemal advice and in light of recent market transactions.

NRV in respect of inventory under construction is assessed with reference to market prices at
the reporting date for similar completed property, less estimated costs to c,omplete construction
less an eslimate of the time value of money to the date of completion. The estimates used took
into consideration fluctuations of price or cost directly relating to events occuning after the end
of the period to the extent th€t such events confirm conditions existing at the end of the period.

The carrying values of these assets as of September 30, 2012 are as follows:

Real estate inventories (Note 7) P2.291 .0 million
Land held for future development (Note 8)P1,193-5 million

e) lmpairment of non-financial assets - The Group assesses impairment on its non-financiel assets
(e.9., property and equipment and intangible assets) and considers the following important
indicators:

. Significant changes in asset usage;

. Significant decline in assets' market value;

. Obsolescence or physical damage of an asset;

. Significant underperformance relative to expecded historical or projecled future operating
results;

obtain the present value of estimated cash flows using the receivable's original effective interest
rate- lmpairment loss is determined as the difference between the receivables' carrying balance
and the computed present value. Facdors considered in individual assessment are payment
history, pas{-due status and term. The collective assessment would require the Group to classify
its receivables based on the credit risk characteristica (customer typ€, pa)ment history, past due
status and term) of the cuslomers. lmpairment loss is then determined based on historical loss
experience of the receivables grouped per credit risk profile. Historical loss experience is
adjusted on the basis of current obseNable data to reflecl the effects of cunent conditions that
did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to remove the
effects of conditions in the historical period that do not exisl curently. The,methodology and
assumptions used for the individual and collective assessments are based on management's
judgment and estimate.

Therefore, the amount and timing of recorded expense for any period would differ depending on
the judgments and eslimates made for the year.

As of September 30,2f'12 and December 2011, the allowance for impairment losses on
receivables of the Group amounted to Pl 1.1 million (see Nole 6).

The carrying values of these assets as of September 30, 2912 are as follows:

P6,558.3 million
P375.6 million

32



6Q*#I}I,NTT]RY
(, l((ll' P, r\(.,

Significant changes in the manner of usage of the acquired assets or the $rategy for the
Group's overall business; and
Significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Group's inlangible assets with indefinite life are tested for impairment annually. lf such
indications are present and where the carrying amount ofthe asset exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the asset's fair value less cost to sell. The fair value less cost to sell is
the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaclion while value in use
is the present value of eslimated future cash flowF expeqted to bg generated from the continued
use of the asset. The Group is requircd to make eslimates and assumptions that can materially
affect the canying amount of the asset being assessed.

The carrying values ofthe noh-financial assets as of September 30; 2012 are shown below.

Property and equipment
Intangible assets

P205.7 million
P2.7 million

s)

Estimating useful lives of property and equipment and inlangible assets - The Group estimates
the useful lives of its property and equipment and intangible assets based on the period over
which the assets are expected to h available for use. The Group reviews annually the
estimated useful lives of these assets based on faciors that include asset utilization, intemal
technical evaluation, technological changes, environmental and anticipated use of the assets
tempered by related industry benchmark information. lt is possible that future results of
operations could be materially affected by changes in these estimates brought about by changes
in the factors mentioned. A reduction in the eslimated useful lives of these assts would
increase depreciation and amortization expense and decrease noncunent assets. Property and
equipment amounted to P205.7 million and P192.3 million as of September 30,2012 and
December 31 . 201 1 .

Recognition of deferred tax assets - The Group reviews the carrying amounls of deferred tax
assets at each reporting date and reduces the amounts to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable inc.me will be available to allow all or pan of the defened tax assets lo be
utilized. Significant judgment is required to determine the amount of defened tax assets that
can be recognized based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable income together with
future planning strategies. The Group assessed its projecled p€rfomance in detemining the
sufficiency of the future taxable income. As of September 30, 2012 and December 31 , 201 1 ,

carrying values of these assets amounted to P179.7 million and P191.8 million, respectively.

As of September 30,2012 and December 31 , 201 1 , the Group has unrecognized defened tax
assets amounting to P65.4 million, which pertain to NOLCO and MCIT. Management believes
that it is not orobable that sufficient taxable income will be available to allow all ofthe deferred
tax assets to be utilized.
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Estimating pension obligations - The determinetion ofthe obligation end cost of retiremenl
benefits is dependent on the selection of certain assumptions used by actuaries in calculating
such amounts. Those assumptions include among others, discount rates and salary increase
rates. While the Group believes that the assumplions are reasonable end appropriete,
significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the assumptions may
materially affect the pension obligations.

The Group's pension liabilities amounted to P20.8 million and P18.2 million as of September 30,
2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively.

Fair value of financial instruments - Where the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded in the Group's statement of financial Dosition or disclosed in lhe notes cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined using intemal valuation techniques using
generally accepted market valuation models. The inputs to these models are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimates are used in
establishing fair values. Thes€ estimates may include considerations of liquidity, volatility, and
conelation.

4. SEGMENT REPORTING

Business segment information is reported on the basis that is used intemally for evaluating segment
performance and deciding howto allocate resources among opersting s€gments. Accordingly, the segment
information is reported based on the nature of service the Group is providing.

The segments where the Group operate follow:
. Real estate development - sale of high-end, upper middle-income and affodable residential lots and

units and lease of residential developments under parlnetship agreements '

. Property management - facilities management of the residential and corporate developments ofthe
Group and other third party projects, including provision of technical and related consultancy
services.

Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss and is measured consistently with
operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. Details of the Group's operating segments
as of and for the period ended Septembe( 30,2012 arc as follows:

Real 6tate Propedy Adjustments/
DeveloDment ManaoeflEr Elimination consolidated

h)

Revenue
Real eslate sales and property management

fee and othea services
Cost and erpenses

Cost of real €sffie sales and seMces

P 6,544.0 P

. 3,472.2

157.0 P

115.7

P 6,701.0

3,987.9
1.325.9cenerel edminist€tive and sellino €rcnsee 1-2ffi-3 62.6

Ope.ating inco.rE
Other incorne(erpenses)

lnter€st and other income

'l/a08.5 ( 21.3)

0. ( 1s0.0)671.4

1,387.2

521.8
fnlerp-.dardotlierfnancindclErdeslS53t(1-2\-(

fnc-me belore tar 2,U.6
Provision for income iax 456.3 4.6 - 460.9

n.1 ( 15ff.0t \472.5

N4jncomu'.-'-_='-- l"ffr,L------2iJ 1-:-lflXrt -l!Ul-i
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Real e€iate

Develoomert
Propefty

Manaoemenl
Adiuslmentg

Elimination

Net income attributable to:
Ownerg ofthe p€aent cornpany r,s88.3 ( 21.4) ( 1so.0)
Non.controllino inteiest - ( 5.3)

r,416.9

2371 I l6n ot trtt^

Other inlonmtion
S€ment ass€{s
Defened tax assets 173.3

21,466.5 108,1 (
6.4

4,472.7\ 17,'101.9
179.7

Tolal assels 21,839.8 1L.5 I 17 -2e1 6

Segment liabiliti!€
Deferred tax liabilities

4, .7
1.114.3

4323.7
11143

Total lirbililies

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

This account consists of:

Cash on hand and in banks
Cash eouivalents

P 630.1
569.7

P t,ls9-8

Cash in banks eams interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are made for varying periods of up to three (3) months depending on the immediate
cash requirements ofthe Group, and eam interest at the prevailing short-term rates. ranging from 0.506 to
4.Oo/o.

6. RECEIVABLES

This account consists of:

Trade receivables
Real estate P
Management fee
Auction fee and commissions
Receivable from employees
Advances to customers

5,193.4
47 .3

2.4
217 .5

13.4
Other receivables 1.343.1

Allowance for imDairmenl losses (
6,817.1

11.1)
6"806.0

Noncunent portion of real eslale receivables 247.7
P 6.558.3

Real estate receivables pertain to receivables from the sale of real estate properlies including residential
condominium units and suHivision house and lots. These are collectible in monthly installments over a
period of one to live years and bear no interest. Titles to real estate properties are not transfened to the
buyer until full paymenl has been made.

Management fees are revenues arising from property management contracts. These are collectible on a 15-
to 30-day basis depending on the terms of the service agrcement.
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Auc{ion fees and commissions are revenues eamed by the Group in facilitating auction of properties and in
marketing real estate properties developed by third parties and affiliates. Receivable from auc{ion fees and
commissions are due within 30 days upon billing.

Advances lo customeF pertain to expenses paid by the Group in behalf of the customers for the taxes and
other costs incuned in securing the title in the name ofthe customers. These receivable are billed separately
to the respective buyers and are expected to be collected within one (1) year.

Receivable from employees pertain to cash advances for retitling cosls, taxes and other operational and
corporate-related expenses. This also includes salary and other loans granted to the employees and are
recoverable through salary deductions. Other receivables are due and demandable and bear no interest.

Other receivables pertain to the amount collectible from customers related to accruals made by the
Company for VAT on real eslate seles. These will be collected along with the monthly insiallments from
cuslomers over a period of one to five years.

7. REAL ESTATE INVENTORIES

This account represents the real estate projects for which the Group has been granted license to sell by the
Housing and Land Use Regulatory Board of the Philippines. Details of this account follow:

Condominium units P 2,209.3
Residential house and lots 81.7

P 2-291-0

The rollforward of this acrount follows:

At January 1

Construction costs incuned
Borrowing cost capitalized
TransfeIs
Cost of real estate sales

P 1,553.0
4,337.9

159.6
't 12.7

( 3.872.2\
Al SeDlember 30 P 2-291.0

General borowings were used to finance the Group's ongoing real estate projecls. The related borrowing
cosls were capitalized as part of real estate inventories. The capitalization rate used to determine the
borowings eligible for capitalization ranges from 7.004 to 10.00/0.

Real estate inventories recognized as'Cost of real estate sales" amounted to P3,872.2 million,
Such cost of sales is derived based on the standard cost for the cunent reporting period.

E. LAND HELD FOR FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Land held for future development consists of parcels of lot acquired by the Group for future real estate
develooment. This account consists of:

Land held by CCDC
Land held bv CLC

P 1 ,065.4
12A.'l

P l.{93.5
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9. ADVANCES TO SUPPLIERS AND CONTRACTORS

Advances to suppliers and contractors amounting to P1,405.3 million as of September 30, 2012 ate
recouped upon every progress billing payment depending on the percentage of accomplishment.

10. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENTASSETS

This account consids of:

Deferred selling expenses
Input laxes
Advances to land owners
Prepaid expenses
Tax credit c€rtificates
Creditable withholding taxes

P 486.7
540.6
678.8
301.2

1.0
0.9

others 0.1
P 2.009.3

Defened selling expenses pertain to costs incuned in selling real estate projects prior to its development.
These capitalized costs shall be charged to expense in the period in which the construction begins and the
related revenue is recognized.

Advances to land owners represent the minimum share of thb lot property owners in relation to the joint
venture poects of the Group. ln accordence with the respective joint venture agreemerts, CCC and CLC
advanced these shares in significant insitallments throughout the term of the projec{. The advances shall be
deducted from the proceeds of the sales and colledion of the land owners' units. Management has assessed
that the settlement of these advances is within one year based on the pre-selling and development activities
that are curently in progress. In addition, this includesthe expenses shouldered by CLC that are attributable
to the land owners in accordance with the joint venture agreement, which shall also be applied to the
subsequent remittance on the land owners' share in the joint venture projec{.

Tax credit certificates pertain to the Group's claims granted by the Bureau of Intemal Revenue in relalion to
income and value added tax refunds.

Creditable withholding taxes are attributable to taxes withheld by third parties arising from property
management fees.

Input taxes are fully realizable and will be applied against output VAT. Tax credit c€rtificates and creditable
withholding taxes will be applied against income tax payable. Prepaid expenses mostly pertain to
prepayments of insurance premiums which will be applied throughout the remaining term of the related
contracts. The 2011 balance includes prepayments pertaining to mar*eting expenses which will be expensed
upon the recognition of the revenue on the related projecl.
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11. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements in this account follow:

At January 1 P 1,119.2
lmorovements 461 .6
Af Seotember 30 P { 5ao-8

Investmenl properties with an original cost of P170.8 million represent the portions CCDC lots that are
intended to be developed for commercial and retail purposes and to be subsequently leased out to third
parties. The Group's investment properties are classified as shown below:

Undeveloped land P 1,060.8
Under construc{ion 520.0
At Seoiember 30 P I _580.8

Investment properties are $ated at fair value, which has been determined based on valuations performed by
Cuervo Appraisers, Inc., an accredited independent valuer, as of Deoember 31 , 201 1 . CueNo Appraisers,
Inc. is an industry specielist in valuing these types of investment properties. The value of the land was
eslimated by using the Sales Comparison Approach, an appmach to value that considers the sales of similar
or subslitute properties and related market data and establishes a value estimate by processes involving
comDanson.

The Group implemented changes in the business plan for certain lots of the lSMl properties previously
intended for leasing purposes during the following periods:.

f n 2010, one of the lots with a tair value oI P427 .9 mlllion was utilized for the development of Centuria
Medical Towers, a projecl of Centuria Medical Development Corporation, wherein the relevant units will be
for sale. Such property was reclassified under the 'Real estate inventories' with the latest fair value of the
lot as its deemed cosl.

In 201 1 , lots with fair value of P1 ,019.8 million and P339. 1 million will be developed by the Group into a
residential condominium building and commercial and office buildings, respeclively, which will be available
for sale.

Except for the change in the fair value inveslment prop€rties, the Group did not eam any revenue from the
use of the said real properties or incuned any direcl operating expenses in relaiion to these inveslment
properties.

12. OTHER NON4URRENT ASSETS

This account consists of:

Rental deposits
Plan assets
Others

P 18.6
2.5

P 22.2

Rental deposits mostly pertain to security deposits held and applied in relation to the Group's lease contracts
for their adminislrative and sales offices. The deposits are noninterest-bearing and are recoverable through
application of rentals at the end of the lease term.
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13. ACCOUNTS AND OTHER PAYABLES

This account consisls of:

Accounts payable P 1,421.2
Accrued expenses 373.2
Retention payable 27 .6
Payable to Manila Jockey Club, Inc. (MJCI) 10.9
Funds held in trust 30.2

Accounts payable are attributable to the construction costs incurred by the Group. These are noninterest
b€aring and are normally settled on 1s-to 60-day terms. Accrued expenses consist malnly of utilities,
marketing cosls, professional fees, communication, transportation and travel, security, insurance,
represenlation and taxes payable.

Payable to MJCI perlains to the unremitted share of MJCI on the sales of a joint venture project with CCC.
The respective payables on MJCI'S share over the sold units are expected to b€ settled upon lum-over of the
units to the buyers within the year.

Retention payables are noninterest-bearing and are normally settled on a 30-day term upon completion of
lhe relevant contrads. Other payables consist mainly of payments received by the Group in behalf of Penla
Pacific Realty Corporation (Penta Pacific) forthe sales management transac{ion between CPMI and Penta
Pacific.

14. CUSTOMERS' ADVANCES AND DEPOSITS

The Group requires buyers of residential units to pay a minimum percentage of the total selling price as
deposit before a sale transaction is recognized. ln relation to this, lhe qjslomers' advances and deposits
represent payments from buyers which have not reached the minimum required percentage. When the level
of required payment is reached by the buyer, a sale is recognized and these deposits and down payments
will be applied againsl the related installment contracts receivable.

The account also includes the excess of colleclions over the recognized receivables based on percentage of
completion. As of September 30, 2012 customers' advances and deposits amounted to P2,494.7 million.

15. SHORT.TERM AND LONG-TERM DEBT

Shott-tetm Debt
Short-term debt consists of:

Bank loans - Philippine Peso
Trust receiots

P 10.1
116.8

P 126.9

Trust receipls (TRs) are obtained for the purchase of construction materials for CCDC'S projects with fixed
interest rate of 8.596 per annum payable monthly in anears and full payment of principal balance is at
maturity of one year with option to prepay.
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Bank loans, consisiting of two (2) short-term promissory notes (PN) amounting to P5.0 million each, were
obtained in 2009 from a local bank for CPMI's additional working cepital requirements, These were renewed
by CPMI in 2012 forthe same terms and rates of interest. Each PN has a term of one (1) year, the full
payment of which is to be made at maturity date at a fixed interest rate of 6.7% per annum (p.a.) each.

P 844.1
. 1 ,829.8

'l-4 l

Lona-tem Debt
Long-term debt consists of:

Subsidiaries:
Payable under CTS financing
Bank loan - Philippine Peso
Car loan financino

Less curenl portion
2,675.3

748.9)
1.926.4

Payable under CTS financing
CCDC entered into various purchase agreements through facilities obtained from financial institutions
whereby CCDC assigns, with recourse, its receivables from buyer covered by OTS. CCDC retains the
assigned receivables in the 'Trade receivables" account and records the proceeds from these sales as
"Long{erm debt". These bear an interest rate of 4016 plus PDSTF and 10% per annum. In addition to the
customers' post-dated checks, securities held by the bank for the related loans include a parcel of land held
by CCDC having a carrying value of P1,547.2 million as of September 30, 2012.

Bank loan - milipf)ine Peso
ln 2010 and 2009, CCDC obtained a peso-denominated loan from a local bank amounting to P95.0 million
and P55.0 million, respec{ively, with a term of forty-eight (48) months at a fixed interesl rate of E.5o6 per
annum. Principal repayment is scheduled until the end ofthe thid year, with the remaining balance to be
paid in full upon maturity. The loan is secured by a parcel of land held by the Group having a carrying value
of P137.9 million and fair value of P696.8 million as of September 30, 2012. These bank loans contain
negative covenant that the Group's payment of dividend is subject to certain tinancial ratios.

Car lom financing
In 201 1 and 2010, the Group, through CCDC and CPMI, entered into bank financing agreement for
installment payments of its transportation equipments amounting to P.f.7 million and P6.2 million,
respectively. The said assets were acquired under a joint financing plan between the Group and its
managerial level employees and are capitalized and depreciated over their EUL of five years. The same
transportation equipments are held on chattel mortgage by the bank as security. The loan, which bears
interest ranging frcm 12.2o/o lo 12.9o/o and payable within (5) years, amounted to P0.9 million as of
September 30, 2012.

f n 2010, CLC oblained a cer loan from a local bank amounting to P0.9 million and bears interest al17.3o/o
per annum payable in (2) years, to finance the acquired transportation equipment. As of September 30,
2012, outstanding balance of this loan amounted lo P0.1 million.

tnterest Expense
Interesl expense recognized during the nine months ended September 30, 2012 for the short-term and long-
term debts amounted to P159.6 million.
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16. EQUITY

Capital Stock
The details of the company's common shares foilow:

Authorized shares
Par value oer share
lssued and subscribed shares

10,000,000,000
P0.53

8,899,724,027

On February 09, 2000, the Company was listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange with a total of
3,554,72O,Oo4 @mmon shares, issued, peid and outslanding out ofthe authodzed capilal stock of
6,000,000,000 shares. The offering of the shares was at P1.00 per share. As of September 30, 2012, there
are 479 holders of the Company's common slock.

On August 17,2011, the Company's BOD approved the increase in authorized capital stock of the Company
from P6,000.00 mi ion divided into 6,000,000,000 shares to P'10,000.00 million divided into 10,000,000,000
shares with par value of P1.00 per share.

On Oclober 27, 2011, the Company's application for incIease in authorized common stock was approved by
the sEc.

Share swap
On Oclober 27. 201 1 . CPI subscribed to 4,01 1 ,671,023 shares of CPGI at a subbcription price of Pl .0 per
share for a total of P4,O11.7 million which is equivalent to the aggregate book value of CPI's shares in CPI

subs as of July 31,2011. This resulted to an increase in the capital slock account of.the Company amounting
to P4,011.7 million. Also on the same date, the net assets of CPGI were consolidated amounting to P1.8
million.

Additional paid-in capital
on May 24,2011, EPHE and EPPECI agreed to condone, release and waive all claims against the
Company- The condoned payable to stockholders amounting to a total of P105.6 million was recognized as
additional paid-in capital.

Retainect eamings
Retained earnings include the accumulated equity in undislributed net eamings of consolidated subsidiaries
amounting to P1,651.5 million as of september 30, 2012.

On April13, 2012, the Board of Directors of CPGI declared its dividend distribution amounting to
p89,449,496 from its unrestricied retained eamings as of December 31, 2011 to stockholders on record date
Aofl 27 .2012.

Quasi-rcorganization
on August 17 , 2011, the Company's BOD approved the equity restructuring of the company as follows:

a) the balance of additional paid-in capital amounting to P2,875.8 million to be applied against the
Company's deficit balance;

b) decrease in the par value of the Company's common shares from P1.0 per share to P0.53 per share;
ano;

c) the resulting additional paid-in capital from the reduction in the par value of the common shares to
be applied against the Company's deficit balance.
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On October 28, 2011, the SEC approved the Company's capital restructuring. The table below summarizes
the effects of the equity restruc{uring in the stand alone financial statements of the Company:

Before the Adiustments Aner the

Capital stock P 3,554,72),(x)4 P 4,O116;t1,98 (p 3,566,26,786) p - P 4,010,187,241
Addilio.El pqidjn capibl 2,875,763,624 - p 3,556,203,286 ( 6,429,73i,956) 3,235..t5l1Deficit(6.428.731.9s6)--6.428.731.956

-._-L 

1751 67? P 4011 _- _P 
- 

P !toljL422j95

(a) Subscn ion ot 4,011,671,023 comnon shares by CPL
(b) Decrease in the par value ol the Company's conmon shares ftom p1 .00 per share b m.Sg per sharc.
(c) Apdication of the dddlional paid,in capitdt against th€ Companyi dettait batahce.

As part ofthe above capital restructuring, the Company applied the balance of additional paid-in capital
amounting P6,428.7 million againsl equity reserves at the consolidated level.

Placing anct Subscription Transactrcn
On February 20, 2012, CPI closed on a Placing and Subscription Transaction wherein it sold 1,333,333,000
shares of stock in CPGI to new investors ("Placing Tranche') at a price of P1.75 per share. Concurrently, it
used the gross proceeds fiom the Placing Tranche, totaling Two Billion Three Hundred Thirty-Three Million,
Three Hundred Thirty-Two Thousand Seven Hundred Fifty (Php2,333,332,750) to re-subscribe to new
1,333,333,000 shares of stock in CPGI ('Subscription Tranche').

Capital management
The primary objeclive of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong and healthy
consolidated statement of financial position to support its current business operations and drive its expansion
and groMh in lhe future.

The Group maintains its cunent capital struc{ure, and will make adjustments, if necessary, in order to
generate a reasonable level of retums to shareholders over the long term. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes during the second quarter of 2012. Equity, which the Group considers as
capital, pertains to the equity attributable to equity holders of the Company excluding equity reserve and loss
on AFS financial assets amounting to a total ol P7,8/,8.2 million as of September 30, 2012.

The Group is not subject to extemally imposed capital requirements.

17. PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENC]ES

The Group is contingently liable for lawsuits or claims filed by third panies (substantially civil cases that are
either pending decision by the c,ourts or are under negotiation, the outcrmes of which are not presently
determinable). In the opinion of management and its legal counsels, the eventual liability underthese
lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material or adverse effect on the Group's financial position and
resufts of operations. The information usually required by PAS 37, Provisions, Corrtingent Uabilities and
Contingent Assets, is not disclosed on the grounds that it can be expected to prejudice the outcome of these
lawsuits, claims or assessmenls. No provisions were made during the period.
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18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair Value Informat:,on
The table below presents the carrying amounts and fair value of the croup's financial assets and liabilities
are as follows:

SeDtember 2012 December 201 1

CanyingCarrying

cash and cash equivalents p 1,199.s p 1,199.8 p 366.6 p 366.6
Receivables

Trade receivables
Real eslate
Management fee
Auction fee and

Comrnissions
Advances to cuslomers.

Receivable from employees
Other receivables

5,193.4
47.3

2.4
13.4

217 .5
1,343.1

5,249.6
47 .3

2.4
13.4

2't7 .5
1,343.1

1,762.3
32.3

1.9
7.8

18.9
74.6

1,931.0
32.3

1.9
7.8

18.9
74.6

Other financiat tiabitities
Accounls and other payables

Accounls payable
Accrued expenses
Payabte to MJcl
Retention payable
O{her payables

Due to related parlies
Short-term debt
Long-term debt

1 ,421 .1

373.2
10.9
27 .6

875.6
141.2
126.9

2,675.3

't,421 .2.
373.2

10.9
27 .6

875.6
't41.2
126.9

2,675.3.

629.2
47 .8
22.8
28.9

175.1
1 15.3

16.3
864.3

629.2
47 .8
22.8
28.9

175.1
1 15.3

16.3
84s.0

Financial assets
cash.and cash equivalents, receivables (excluding real eslate receivables with more than one year renor)and due from related parties - canying amounts approximate fair values due to the shortterm malurities ofthese instruments.

Noncurenl real estate receivables - Fair value is based on undiscounted value of future cash flows using theprevailing interest rates for similartypes of receivables as ofthe reporting date using the remaining terms ofmaturitv. The discount rate used ranged from 2.07% to 6.540/6 and a.2ok io o.o"r rorinelertoJ 
"noingSeptember 30, 2O'lZ and year ended December 31, 2011, respeaivety.

AFS financial assets - Fair varues are based on quoted prices pubrished in the market.
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Other financial liabilities
The fair values of accounts and other payables, due to related parties and.short-term debt approximate the
carrying amount due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair value of tong-term debt and liability from purchas€d land are estimated using the discounted cashflow methodology using the Group's current incremental bono^,ing rates for si;ilar bonowings with
maturities consislent with those r9T1'linS for the liability being valued. The discount rates used for long-term debt ranged from 2.5oo/o to 4.44% as of Septembei 30, to12 anc, December 31, 2011. The discountrates used for the liability from purchased land ranged from 3.830/6 to 5.37o/o as of Sepiember 30,2012 andDecember 31 , 2011.

Fair Vatue Hierarchv
The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of the Rnanctal
instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1: quoted (unadjusted prices) in aclive markets for identical assets and liabilities
Level 2:. other lechniques for which all inputs which have a signiticant effect on the recorded fair value areobservable, either direc y or indiredly.
Level 3: techniques which use inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value tnat are notbased on observable market data_

As of september 30, 2012 and December 3 r, 2011, the Group hetd AFS financiar assets comprising ofquoted equity securities which are measured al fair velue. Accordingly, such investments are Llassifiedunder Level 1 . The Group has no financial instrumenls measured und-er Level 2 and 3. ln toltand 201 1 ,the Group did not have transfers between Level t ano z tair vaiue measurements and no transfers into andout of Level 3 fair value measurements.

Ananaa nSX *tnare m n
I ne Group nas various financial assets and liabilities such as cash, re@ivables, accounts and omerpayables and due to.related parties, which arise directly from iii operauons. The Group has avaited short-term and long-term debt for financing purposes.

Exposure to credit, interest rate and liquidity risks arise in the normat course ofthe Group,s businessactivities. The main objecrives of the Group's financiat rii[ ."n"g"r"nt 
"." 

as fo[ows:

. to identify and monitor such risks on an ongoing besis;. to minimize and mitigate such risks; and. to provide a degree of certainty about costs.

The Group's BoD reviews and approves the poricies for managing each of these risks and they aresummarized below:

Credit isk
credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or cu$omercontract, leading to a financial loss. The Group trades.only vrfrh recognized, creoitworttry inilo-p"rti"". th"Group's receivables are monitored on an o.ngoing uasis rdsutting to manageable exposure to bad debts. Reatestate buyers are subject to standard credit Jheci proceduro'*ili"t 

"r;;tiilt"d;;;-;;ffi"y."n,scheme offered. The Group's respective credit management units conduct a comprehensive creditinvestigation and evaluation of each buyer to esrauris-tr creoitworrniness.
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Receivable balances are being monitored on a regular basis to ensure timely execution of necessary
intervention efforts. In addition, the sedit risk for real estate receivables is mitigated as the croup has the
right to cancel the sales contract without need for any court action and take poslession of the subject house
in.cese ot refusal by the buyer to pay on time lhe du; installment contrads receivable. This risk is further
mitigated because the corresponding title to the suMivision units sold under'this anangemeniis transteneo
to the buyers only upon full payment of the contract Drice.

With respect to credit risk arising from the other Rnancial assets oflhe Group, which comprise cash and cashequivalents and AFs financial assets, the Group's exposure to credit risk ariies from default ofthe
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. The Grouplransacts only vrith institutions or banks which have demohstiated financial soundness foiitre fast s years.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

The table below shorivs the maximum exposure to credit risk forthe components ofthe consolidareo
statements of financial position.

Jnaudited Audited
1n-SFnt-lt 2r h^^ ra

cash.and cesh equivalents. p 1,199.7 p 366.5Receivables
Trade receivables

Real estate
Management fee
Auction fee and commissions

Advances to customers
Receivable from employees
Other receivables

Due from related perties

5,193.4
47 .3
2.4

13.4
217 .5

1,343.1
375.6

1 ,762.3
32.3

't.9
7.8

18.9
74.6

155.8

The maximum exposure is shown gross, before the effect of mitigalton through the use of collateralagreements The subjecl real estate units are held as collateral ior alt installment contracts receivable.
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As of september 30, 2012 and oecember 31 , 201 1 , the aging analysis of the Group's re6€ivables presenled
per class is as follows:

September - 2012

Neither
Pasl

Due nor
lmp€ired _ Past due but rlot impaired

Receivables
Trade rec€ivables

Real esiate
Management fee
Auction f€e and

comm|ss|ons

Advances to customers
Receivable from
employees
Other .eceiyables

December - 201 1

TEde rectivables
Real estate
Manag€ment fee
Auction fee and

commissions
Adr/ances to custoaners
Receimble from
employ€es
Other rec€i\Ebl€s

5,'t93.4
47.3

2.4

13.4

217.5
1,332.0

5,193.4
47.3

2.4

13.4

Neither
Past

Due nor
lmpaired

't 0-5 21.9 1,7e.3
35.02.7

.5
0.'l 2.5

7.4

18.9

Liquidv isk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meel commilmentsassociated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk m"y t"jurt r.r eitherthe inability to sell financial asselsquickly at their fair velues; or the^counterparti rriring o;' r"pri.;nt of a contractual obligation; or inability togenerate cash inflows as anticipated.

The Group's objeclive is to maintain.a. balance between continuity ot funding and flexibility through the useof bank loans and advances from related partiei. in" C.,ip'ir'i'"ioers its avaitabte funds and its-tiquidity inmanaging its rong-term financiar requirements. rt matche; iis pio;"a"o cash flows ro the projecleoamortization of rong-term borrowings. For its strorr-term iuno-i,is, in" erorp,. poricy is to ensure that thereare sufficient operating inflows to match repayments of snJrt-tErm oeur.
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Th€ following table shows the maturity profile of the Group's finanoial assets used for liquidity purposes andliabilities based on contrac{ual undiscounted payments:

Cash and cash equivalent
Receivables

Trade receivables
Real estate
Management fee
Auction fee and commissions

Receivable from employees
Advances to custombrs
Other receivables

Accounts and other pavables
Due to related Darties 

-

Short-term debt

569.7

4,87A.5
47 .3
2.4

217.5
13.4

1332.0

1,421.2
141.2
126.9
748.9

314.9

't,sza.q

1',t.1

569.7

5,193.4
47 .3

217 .5
13.4

1,343.1

1,421.2
14't.2
126.9

2,67 5.3
debt

5

More than 5

Cash and cash equivalent
Receivables

Trade receivables
Real estate
Management fee

- . Auctio, fee and commissions
AOVanCeS lO CUStOmers
Receivable from emplovees
Other receivables -

.roo.5

69'1.3
JZ3

2.O
7.8

18.9
74.6

903.9
115.3
16.3

JO6 |

1,07'1_

:

366.5

1,762.3

2.O
7_8

18.9
74.6

903.9
115.3

16.3
86/.2

Accounts and other paVables
Due to related Darties 

-

Short-term debt
,195.sdebt
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Foreign cuffency isk
Financial assets and credit facilitiesof 

.tlt"_9l9rp: asx/ell as major contracts entered into for the purchase ofraw meterials, are mainly denominated in Philippine Peso. There are only minimal placements in foreigncurrencies and the Group does not have any foreign currency-denominaled oebt. ei such, tne cioupsforeign currency risk is minimal.

Interest rate isk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the market interesl rates will reduce the Group,s cunent or futureeamings and/or economic value. The Group's interest rate risk management policy centers on reducing theoveEll.inlerest expense.and exposure to changes in interest rates. changes in mi*"t inrereJ iates relateprimarily to the Group's interest bearing debt obligations with floating inteiest rales or rates suuject torepricing as it can cause a change in the amount-of interest payments.
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Schedule of Financial Soundness Indicators
September 30, 2012 and September 30, 2011

Currcnt Ratio - -2I;
Debtto Equity Rario 6;.K
Asst to Equity Ratio 2.2x

WWRetum on Assets 16.9%
Return on Equity n,go6EBIT 1,/ti}0.5EETDA 1.478.7
Totaf Debt Z,nZ.Z
lvet Debt 1.g02.4
Gross Profit from Real Estab Sates Margin 43.1o/o
lt|et Income Margin 19,S/o
l{et debt-loaquity ratio 0.2x
Debt{o€BtTDA ratio 0.5x
IVet de bt-to+BtTDA iatio 0.3x

1.9x
0.2x
2.3x

11.gryd

31.1%

783,7
786.2
882.5
515.9

41.80/;

m.4%
0.1x
0.3x
0.2x

EXHIBIT 1

Notes:

fl Current ralio - computed as current assets divided by current liabitities

l7l ?::5fT:Y.91'= ":T!ffi T interest bearins toans and bonownss divided by stockhotders, equrty.(o.l Asser-rG€qufiy ratlo - measures the financial leverage and long term solvency. lt ihows how much otthe assets
31"..::11-by llg:ompany. ll is compured as totat ;ssers divi;ed by stockhoiders, equity.(c) Helurn on assets is calculated.by dividing.net income for the period on an annuatized baiis by average totalassets (beginning plus end ofthe period divided by two).(5) Return on equity is calculated by dtviding net income for the perioo on an annualized basis by average totat equity(beginning ptus end ofthe period divided bv two).(6) EBIT is calculated as net income after adding back interest expense and provisicn for income tax. EBITDA iscalculated as net income after adding back i;terest expense, depreciation and amortization anJlrovision torIncome tax. -

(7) Net debt is carcurated as totar deb ess bash and cash equivarents as ofthe end ofthe period.(8) Gross profit from real estate sales margin is calculated as the sum of reat estate sales and accretion otunamortized discount (which we record under interet and other income), less the cost of real estate sares, as apercentage of the sum of rear estate sares and accretion of unamortized discount, for the p;;ioa.'(9) Net margin is calculated as net.income as a perc"ntag. ot reuenue for the period.(l9l Ie! deblt9-equity ratio is carcurated as net aeot oivioEo by totar equity as oftheend of the period.(11) Debtto-EBlrDA ratio is calcutated as totat debt as ottne6no oitrl plrioo diviJeJ uy eiii6n ioi 1," p""oocalculated on an annualized basis.
(12) Net debt to EBITDA ratio is catculated as net debt as of the end of the period divided by EBIToA for the periodcalculated on an annualized basts,
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERTAIONS

Results of operations covering 3rd Quarter of 2012 vs 3d Quarter of 2011

Revenues

Rea, Estate
The Group recoded revenue from real estate sales amounting to P6,544.0 million for the nine months ended
September 30,2012, an increase of 127o/o lrom P2,883.4 million in same period last year. This increase
was due primarily to construction accomplishments of The Gramercy Residences, The Knightsbridge
Residences, The Trump Tower Manila, The Milano Residences, Centuria Medial Building, and the Rio,
Santorini and St. Tropez Buildings in Azure Urben Resort Residences, the Niagara and Sutherland Buildings
ofAcqua Private Residences, and Canyon Ranch.

The Group account for real estate revenue from completed housing and condominium units and lots using
the full accrual method. The Group uses the percentage of completion method, on a unit by unit basis, to
recognize income from sales where the Group has material obligations under the sales contraci to complete
after the property is sold. Under this method, revenue is recognize as the related obligations are fulfilled,
measured principally in relation to aclual costs incurred to date over the total estimated costs. The Group
requires payment ot 20oh to 60% of the total contrac{ price, depending on the type of property being
purchased, and buyers are given the duration of the construction period to complete such payment.

o Real eslate revenue of Century City buildings increased by 64.8% to P3,515.0 million in the nine
months ended September 30, 2012 from P2,132.8 million for the period ended September 30, 201 1 .

This was primarily attributable to the increase in the overall completion of Gramercy, Knightsbridge,
Milano and Centuria's sold inventories. Century City buildings cater to the middle income and

luxury segment of the martet.

o Real estate revenue of Azure buildings increased by 622.70/0 lo P2,212.2 million in the nine months
ended September 30,2012 from P306.1 million for the period ended September 30,2011. Thiswas
primarily attributable to the increase in the overall completion of Rio, Santorini and St. Tropez
Buildings' sold inventories. Azure caters to the affordable segment of the market.

. The Company also started recognizing real estate revenue from Acqua buildings. During the period,

the Company recognized P739.2 million of revenue from Niagara and Sutherland buildings' sold
inventories. Acqua cater to the middle income segment of the mar'ket.

. Real estate revenue of Canyon Ranch Project increased by 232.4% lo P72.8 million in the nine
months ended September 30, 2012 from P21 .9 million for the period ended September 30, 2011 .

This was primarily due to more units completed during ihe nine months ended September 30,20'12
than in same period ending September 30, 2011. Canyon Ranch Projecl caters to the middle
income segment of the market.
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Inbrcst and Other lncorne
Interest and other income increased by 1.4olo to P521.8 million in the nine months ended September 30,
2012 trcm P514-6 million for the period ended September 30, 2011. This increase was due primarily to non-
cash accretion of unamortized discounts reflecting increased sales in the period and the increase in
cumulative sales from prior periods.

Propetty management fee and other setyices
Property management fee and other services increased by 4.0% to P157.0 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 from P151..0 million for the period ended September 30, 2011. This increase was
primarily due to management fee rate escalations for some of the projects under inanagement ranging from
5% to 10%. The number of buildings under management as of September 30, 2012 is 51 .

Costs and Expenses
Cost and expenses increased by 108.5% to P5,350.3 million in the nine months ended September 30,2012
from P2,566.7 million for the period ended September 30, 2011 .

. Cost of reel estate sales increased by 109.406 from Pl,848.9 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2011 to P3,872.2 million in the period ended September 30, 2012. This was
primarily due to the corresponding groMh in revenue from real estale sales.

. Cost of services increased by 8.4% to P115.7 million in the nine months ended September 30, 2012
from P106.7 million in the p€riod ended September 30, 201 1 . This was primarily due to
coresponding growth in property management and other service fees.

. General, administrative and selling expenses increased W 132.8% to P1,325.9 million in the nine
months ended September 30, 2012 trom P569.5 million in the period ended Septemb€r 30, 201 1 .

The increase was primarily due to amortization of deferred marketing expenses of launched projects
wilh no percentage-of-completion as of September 30, 2011 and those incuned by the poects
during the period ended September 30, 2012.

. Interesl and other financing charges decreased by 12.3% to P36.5 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 trom P41.6million for lhe same period in 201 1 . This was primarily due to
capitalization of bonowing costs during the period.

Provision for lncome Tax
Provision for income t.x increased by 77.5o/o to P460.9 million in the nine months ended September 30,
2012 lrcm P259.7 million in the period ended September 30, 2011. The increase was primarily due to
collections on new sales during the period as well as from amodization of accounts sold in previous periods.

Net lncome
As a result of the foregoing, net income increased by 95.4% to P1,411.6 million in the nine months ended
September 30, 2012 trom P722.6 million in the period ended September 30, 201 1 .
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Financial Condition as of September 30, 2012 vs December 31, 2011

Total assets as of September 30, 2012 were P17,281.5 million compared to P10,029.4 million as of
Dec€mber 31, 2011 , ot a 72.3oh inarcase. This was due to the following:

o Gash and cash equivalents including short lerm and long-term cash investments increased by
227 .3oh or P833.2 million from P366.6 million as of December 31 , 201 1 to P1,199.8 million as of
September 30, 2012 pfimarily due to rec€ipt of proceeds from the Placing and Subscription
Transaction and customers' advances and deDosits and increase in availment of credit facilities.

o Receivables increased by 214.7o,/o trom P1,974.6 million as of December 31,2011 to P6,806.0as of
September 30, 2012 million due to the revenue recognized during for the period.

. During the period ended September 30, 2012, Real eslate invenlories increased by 47.5o/o from
P1,552.9 million to P2,291.0 million due to project development and lransfer of cost of land for four
Acqua buildings previously classilied as land held for future deyelopment.

. Advances to suppliers and contraclors decreased by 38.906 to Pl,405.3 million as of September 30,
2012lrcm P2,300.1 million as of December 31, 201 1 primarily due to recoupment of down payment
based on percentage of completion through progress billings.

Totaf liabif ities as of Septembet 30, 2012 were P9,438.0 million compared to P5,697.8 million as of
December 31 , 201 1 , or a P65.60/6 increase. This was due to the following:

. Accounts and other payables increased by 179.6% from P968.7 million as of December 31, 201 1 to
P2,708.5 million as of September 30, 2012 due to accruals made at the end ofthe period.

o Customers' advances and deposits decreased by 8.6010 from P2,730.6 million to P2,494.7 million
representing collections from customers which met the revenue recognition criteria as of end of the
period.

. Short-term and long-term debt repres€nting the sold portion of the Company's installment contracts
receivables with recourse, increased by 217.5% from P882.5 million as of December 31 , 201 1 to
P2,8O2.2 million as of September 30, 2012 due to draw down or availments made during the period.

. Liabilities for purchas€d land decreased by 6.2016 from P85.2 million as of December 31, 201 1 to
P79.9 million as of September 30, 2012 due to payments made during the period.

. lncome tax payable decreased by 48.7o,/o frcm P149.0 million as of December 31, 2011 to P76.4
million as of September 30, 2012 primarily due to higher taxable income during the full year 201 I as
compared to nine months ended September 30, 2012.
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Total stockholdefs equity net increased by E1.1% to P7,843.5million as of September 30, 2012 from
P4,331.6 million as of December 31, 2011 due to issuance of new shares and the net income recorded for
the nine months ended September 30, 2012.

Return on Asaete (annualized) 16.9%
Return on Equity (annuaf izedl &3%
EBIT (in millions) 1,4i18.5

EBfTDA (in millions) '1,47A.7

Totaf Debt (in millions) 2,802.2
Net Debt {in millions} 1,602.4
Groas Profit from Real Estate Sales Maigin 13-1'A

Net Income Margin l9-5%
Net debt-to.€quity ratio O.2x

Debt-to-EBITDA ratio (annualized) O.sx

Net debt{cEBITDA ratio (annualized) 0.3x

1't.90/o

31.10h

743.7
746.2
882.5
5't 5.9
41.E%

N.1%
0.1x
0-3x
O.2x

(4)
(5)

(6)
(7',)

(8)

(s)

Notes:
(1) Return on assets is calculated by dividing net income for the period on an annualized basis by average total

assets (beginning plus end ofthe period divided by two).
(2) Retum on equity is calculated by dividing net income for the period on an annualized basis by average total equity

(beginning plus end ofthe period divided by two).
(3) EBIT is calculated as net income after adding back interest expense and provision for income tax- EBITDA is

calculated as net income after adding back interest expense, depreciation and amortization and provision for
Income rax
Net debt is calculated as total debt less cash and cash equivalents as of the €nd of the period.
Gross profit from real estate sales margin is calculated as the sum of real estate sales and accretion of
unamortized discount (which we record under interest and other income), less the cost of real estate sales, as a
percentage of the sum of real estate sales and accretion of unamortized discount, for the period.
Net margin is calculated as net income as a percentage of revenue for the period.
Net debt-to-equity ratio is calculated as nei debt divided by total equity as of the end ofthe period.
Debt-to-EBITDA ratio is calculated as total debt as ofthe end of the period divided by EBITDA for the period
calculated on an annualized basis.
Net debt to EBITDA ratio is calculated as net debt as of the end of the period divided by EBITDA for the period
calculated on an annualized basis.

Material Changes to the Company's Balance Sheet as of Septemb€r 30, 2012 compared to December
31, 2011 (incrcase/decrease of 5% or more)

Cash and cash equivalents including short term ancl long-term cash inveslments increased by 227.3o/o or
P833.2 million from P366.6 million as of December 31, 2011 to P1,199.8 million as of September 30, 2012
primarily due to receipt of proceeds from the Placing and Subscription Transaclion and customers' advances
and deposits and increase in availment of credit facilities.

Receivabfes increased by 244.7o/o from P1,974.6 million as of December 31, 2011 to P6,806.0as of
September 30, 2012 million duetothe revenue recognized during forthe period.

During the period ended September 30, 2012, Real estate inventories increased by 47.59o from P1 ,552.9
million to P2,291.0 million due to project development and transfer of cost of land for four Acqua buildings
previously classified as land held for future development.
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Advances to suppliers and contractors decreased by 38.9o/o to Pl,405.3 million as of September 30,2012
from P2,300.1 million as of December 31,2011 primarily due to recoup.nent of down payment based on
percentage of completion through progress billings.

Prepayments and other cunent assets increased by 138.6% !rcm PU2.2 million to P2,009.3 million due lo
advance payments made to land orrners and defenal of certain marketing expenss of newly launched
projects with no perc€ntage-of-completion as of September 30, 2012.

Property and equipment increased by 7.006 from P192.7 million to P205.'l million due to acquisitions made
during the period.

Accounts and other payables increased by 179.60/0 from P968.7 million as of December 91, 2011 to
P2,708.5 million as of September 30, 2012 due to accruals made atthe end of the period.

Customers' advances and deposits decreased by 8.60lo from P2,730.6 million to P2,494.7 million
representing collections from cuslomers which met the revenue recognition criteria bs of end of the period.

Short-term and long-term debt representing the sold portion of the Company's installment contracts
receivables with recouE€, increased by 217.5o/o from P882.5 million as of December 31,2011 to p2,802.2
million as of September 30, 2012 due to draw down or availments made during the period.

Liabifities for purchased land decreased by 6.2010 from P85.2 million as of December 31, 2011 to p79.9
million as of September 30, 2012 due to payments made during the period.

Income lax payable decrease d by 48.7% from P149.0 million as of December 31 , 201 1 to P76.4 million as of
September 30,2012 pfimarily due to higher taxable income during the full year 2O11 as compared to nine
months ended Seotember 30. 2012.

Total slockhobers equity net increased by 81.106 to p7,843.5 million as of september 30, 2012 from
P4,331.6 million as of December 31, 2011 due to issuance of new shares and the net income recorded for
the nine months ended September 30, 2012.

Material Changes to th€ Company's Statement of income for the 3ro quarter ended September 30,
2012 compared to the 3d quarter ended September 30, 2011 (increase/decrease of 50/6 or morc)

Real eslate sales, posted an increase of 99.306 from P1,008.5 million in same period last year. This
increase was due primarily to significant construction accomplishments of The Knightsbridge
Residences,The Trump Tower Manila, The lvlilano Residences, Centuria Medial Building, and the Rio,
Santorini and St. Tropez Buildings in Azure Urban Resort Residences, as well as Niagara and Sutherland
Buildings of Acqua Private Residences.

Cost of real estate sales increased by 46.4ohfrom P813.4 million in the three months ended September 30,
2011 to P1,'190.5 million in the quarter ended September 30, 2012. This was primarily due to the
conesponding growth in revenue from real estate sales.

General, administrative and selling expenses increased by 92.50/6 to P454.0 million in the three months
ended September 30,2012 from P235.9 million in the period ended September 30, 2011. The increase was
primarily due to amortization of deferred marfteting expenses of launchfu projects with no percentage-of-
completion as of September 30, 2011 and those incurred by the projec{s during the quarter ended
September 30, 2012.
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lnterest and other financing chalges inoreased by 13.3% to P13.6 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2012 frcm P12.0 million for the same period in 20 t 1. This was primarily due to avaitmenfs of
certain credit facilities cluring the period.

Provision for income tax increased W 20.2oh to P120.4 million in the quarter ended September gO,2O1Z
from Pl00.2 million in the same period in 201 1 . The increase was primarily due to colleclions on new sates
during the period as well as from amortization of accounts sold in previous periods.

There are no other material changes in the Group's financial.position (changes of 5olo or more) and condition
that will wanant a more detailed discussion. Further, there are no material events and uncertainties known to
management that would impac{ or change reported financial information and condition on the Grouo. The
subsidiaries are contingently liable for guarantees arising in the ordinary course of business, including surety
bonds, letters of guararnee for performance, and bonds for all its real estate projects.

Tie Group is contingently liable with respect to certain lawsuits or claims filed by third parties (substantially
civil cases that are either pending decision by the courls or are under negotiatio;, the outcrmes of which are
not presently determinable). In the opinion of management and its legal counsels, the eventual liability under
these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a meterial or adverse effect on the Group,s financial position
and results of operations.

There are no known trends or demands, commitments, events of uncerlainties that will result in or thal are
reasonably likely to result in increesing or decreasing the Group's liquidily in any material way. The Group
sourced its capital requirements through a mix of intemally generated cash and'pre-selling. The Group does
not expect any material cash requirements beyond the normal course ofthe business. Th; GrouD is not in
default or breach of eny note, loan, Iease or other indebtedness or financing arrangement requiring it to
make paymeds.

There_are no events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the Group,
including any default or acceleration of an obligation except for those items disclosed in the 3d euarter of
2012 Financial Statements.

There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, affangements, obligation (including contingent
obligations), or other relationships of the Group with unconsolidated entities or other persons cre-ated during
the reporting period except those disclosed in the 36 euarter of 2012 Financial statements.

There are no material commitments for capital expenditures, events or uncertainties that have had or that
are reasonably expected to have a material impact on the continuing operations ofthe Group.

There were no seasonal aspects that had a material effeci on the financial condilion or resulls of oDerattons
of lhe Group.

There are no explanatory comments on the seasonality ofthe operations. There are no material even6
subsequenl to the end ofthe fiscal period that have not been reflected in the financial statements

There are no material amounts affecting assets, liabilities, equity, net income or cash flows that are unusual
in nature; neither are there changes in estimates of amounts reported in a prior period of the current financial
year.
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COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Parent Company's subsidiaries are contingently liable for guarantees arising in the ordinary course of
business, including surety bonds, letters of guarantee for performance, and bonds for its entire reel estate
project.
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PART II4THER INFORMATION

ftem 3. 3' Quarte ( ot 2012 Developments

A. New Projecls or Investments in another line of business or corporation.

None

B, Composition of Board of Direclors

Name of Director Position
Jose E.B. Antonio Chairman of the Board
John Victor R. Antonio Director
Jose Marco R. Antonio Director
Jose Roberto R. Antonio Director
Jose Carlo R. Antonio Director
Ricerdo Cuerva Director
Rafael G. YaDtinchav Direclor
Washinoton Z. Svcio lndeoendent Director
Monico v. Jacob IndeDendent Director

c. Performance of the corporation or resuluprogress of operations.

Please see unaudited Financial Statements and Management's Drscussion ard Anarysrs-

D, Declaration of Dividends.

The Company declared dividends amounting to P86,449,496 for all shareholders as of record date: April 27,
20121or PO.0O97 per share. Distdbution of dividends were made May 24,2012.

E. Contra6ts of merger, consolidation orjoint venture; contract of management, licensing, marketing,
distributorship, technical assistance or similar agreements.

None

F. Offering of rights, granting of Stock Options and corresponding plans thereof.

None

G. Acquisition of additional mining claims or other capital assets or patents, formula, real estate.

Not Applicable

H. Other information, material events or happenings that may have atfecled or may effect maftet price of
security.

None.

l. Transferring of assets, except in normal course of business.

None.
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Item 4. Other Notes as of 3rd Quarter of 2012 Operations and Financials,

J. Nature and amount of items affeciing assets, liabilities, equity, net income, or cash flows that is unusual
because of their nature, size. or incidents.

None.

K. Nature and amount of changes in estimates of amounts reported in prior periods and their material effect
in the cunent oeriod.

mere were no changes in estimates of amounts rcpfted in prior inteim peifl or prior frnanciat yearc that
have a mateial effed in the cunerrt inteim peiod

L. New financing through loans/ issuances, repurchases and repayments of debt and equity securities.

See ruotes fo Financial Statements aN Management Discussion and Analysis.

M. Material events to the end ofthe interim period that have not been reflected in the financial statements
for the interim period.

None

N. The effect of changes in the composition of the issuer during the interim period including business
combinations, acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and long tem investments, reslructurings, and
discontinuing operations.

None

O. Changes in contingent liabilities or contingent assets since the last annual statement of finencial position
date.

None

P. Existence of material contingencies and other material events or transactions during the interim period

None.

Q. Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the oompany, including
any defaull or acceleration of an obligation.

None

R. Material off-balance sheet transac{ions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obligations) , and
other relationships ofthe company with unconsolidated entities or other p€|s0ns cfeated during the reporting
period.

None.

s. Material commitments for capital expenditures, general purpose and expected sources of funds.
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me movenent of capital expenditures bew @ntaeted arcse fiom the regular land devehwent and
con struclion req uireme nts.

T' Known trends, events or uncedainties that have had or that are reasonabty expected to have tmpact on
sales/revenuegincome frcm continuing operations.

As ot Septembr 30, 2012, there are no known trcnds, events or uncertainties that are reasonably exqcted
to have impact on salestevenuedtncome from continuing oryrations excet for those being disclosed in thegd Quafter of 2012 financiat statefirents.

u. significant el€menls of income or loss that did not arise from continuing operalions.

None.

V. Causes for any material change/s from period to period in one or more line items ofthe financiat
statements.

see Notes to Financial statements aN Management Discussion aN Anatysis (MD&A) as mateiat changes
arc clescribed in detail in the MD&A section

W. Seasonal aspecis that had material effect on the Rnancial condition or results of operations.

None.

X. Disclosures not made under SEC Form 17-C.

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities R€ulation Code, the regislrant has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunio duly authonzeo.

CENTURY PROPERTIES GROUP INC.
By:

lluuWt
RA[irON S. VTLTANUEVA ill
VP pomptroller
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